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El año 2022 culminó marcado por el inicio de la desaceleración de la economía 

global que interrumpió la posibilidad de escalar a mejores niveles de bienestar; el 

The year 2022 came to an end, marking the onset of the slowdown of the global economy, thereby 

breaking with the possibility of scaling up to new levels of well-being.  Monetary and tax stimuli put 

restructuring of supply chains and rising energy and food prices produced supply shocks. 

la recuperación económica de la región. Como era 

governments, particularly those of the world’s 

principal economies, found themselves having to 

take measures to bring them under control by raising 

interest rates and hastening the withdrawal of their 

stimulus plans.  This brought about a weakening 

of the region’s economic recovery.  As was to be 

expected, these measures slowed global economic 

growth at a moment when the LAC countries were 

still struggling to emerge from the crisis triggered by 

Covid-19.  

It is for that reason that the International Monetary 

Fund (IMF) projected that the advanced economies 

would reach growth of only 1.1.% in 2003, and the 

developing economies, of 3.7%.  Meanwhile, Latin 

America and the Caribbean, where economies and 

enterprises had been heavily impaired, are struggling 

to recover an enormous amount of ground that was 

lost during the pandemic.  The region is not expected 

to experience a recession, but to see meager growth 

of 1.7%, half of that achieved in 2021 and one-

“

Palabras del 
presidente

Message from the president

“
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In that context, the activities of our Latin American 

Association were in line with the important issues, 

matters of concern, urgencies and needs of the 

members.  In 2022, after three years of physical 

absence, the Community of Development Banks re-met 

in person at the 52nd General Assembly in Curazao, 

where it was stressed that the Development Banking 

system is adopting new technologies in order to provide 

better services.   

It is also supporting enterprise efforts to modernize 

and make innovations in their production processes 

by taking a sustainable environmental approach and 

ensuring that the emerging technologies, strategically 

managed, guarantee the accomplishment of objectives 

that will lead to better results in the region in coming 

years from a joint effort by the public and private 

sectors.  

It was stressed, as well, that the new disruptive or 

emerging technologies have boosted the development 

of digital banking, making it possible to implement  a 

different problems very rapidly because they enable 

banks to create products, reinforce already existing 

markets, direct efforts to priority areas depending on 

their situation and circumstances, and supplement the 

With a more global vision, it was emphasized that 

center of the agenda for the

transformation of Latin America and the Caribbean.   

region’s development, joint efforts among the different 

other words, to think and act with an integrating 

regional vision. 

of the Third Roundtable of Chief Economists of Latin 

American and Caribbean Development Finance 

Institutions “Rethinking the Latin American and 

where it was pointed out that “more resources 

are needed to support the different sectors and to 

to be able to more forcefully channel resources towards 

women’s empowerment, renewable energy sources, 

food security, and decarbonization of the economy, 

We have also been actively involved in the global 

development banking movement, Finance in Common 

(FIC), held since 2020 in Paris, in Rome in 2021 and 

last year in Abidjan, Ivory Coast, in the understanding 

that, just as we need to share a common vision at the 

national level and to work jointly with the various 

holds true at the world level.   

The topic of the FIC summit was “Green and just 

instrumental role of the Development Banking system 

was underscored as being to support the transformation 

their sustainability, while at the same time addressing 

the most pressing needs of the developing countries 
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and vulnerable groups. The summit also offered an 

opportunity to strengthen alliances and reinforce 

commitments in support of common actions. 

Also of importance was the co-organization of the 

VII World Congress on Rural & Agricultural Finance, 

with the Fideicomisos Instituidos en Relación con la 

Agricultura (FIRA), the Regional Associations and the 

International Confederation for Agricultural Credit 

(CICA). This meeting stressed that, despite the fact 

has made it possible to tone down certain harmful 

fragmented; as a result, farmers continue to depend 

goods, for their part, are extremely important for 

creating appropriate conditions for boosting projects in 

the agricultural and rural sector.  For that reason, duly 

coordinated government action at its various levels is 

extremely important.

Attention was also drawn to the concern that exists 

over the growing hunger in several regions of the 

world and the importance of technology for resolving 

the characteristic problems of the sector, such as the 

geographic scattering of producers, high transaction 

costs, the presence of asymmetric information, and the 

need to enhance productivity.  

In this frame of events, development banks have, 

and opportunities to confront in complying with our 

national mandates to prop up the region’s growth and 

inclusive, equitable and sustainable development.

global.

abren la posibilidad de reducir la desigualdad 

The challenges for development banking on the 

immediate horizon are numerous, but what stands 

out is providing support to the production and social 

sectors so that they are able to cope with this reduced 

level of global growth.  

As the central elements of the development of our 

society and development banking system with a 

long-term vision, we can cite the adoption of new 

technologies with which to provide better services, and 

support the operational capacity of enterprises and 

innovation of production processes with an approach 

towards environmental sustainability.  Furthermore, 

the development of sustainability instruments is being 

sought in order to make it possible to reduce inequality 

and protect the environment through appropriate and 

responsible management of the available resources and 

to promote agriculture and sustainable agribusiness, 

safeguard the biodiversity and gender equality.  Also to 

support the mobilization of investment funds and joint 

action by the public and private sectors, hand-in-hand 

with the governments, international organizations and 

civil society.   ALIDE and its member institutions, Latin 

American and Caribbean public banks, align ourselves 

with these central elements and are actively involved in 

Generally speaking, 52 meetings, courses, seminars, 

webinars and other preparatory and training activities 

were held in 2022 for the exchange of knowledge and 

people participating, on topics relating to the demands 

of development banks.  We will also continue to pursue 

the ALIDE-Green 
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en los bancos de desarrollo con la organización 

Climate Fund (GCF) Regional Readiness project on 

institutions through a regional approach that may 

identify barriers to, and opportunities for, climate 

exchanges of successful experiences, as well as impact 

monitoring and follow-up mechanisms.  

Insofar as studies and research are concerned, ALIDE 

published and collaborated in the preparation of 

reports, technical documents, and handbooks on the 

actions taken by Latin American Development Banks, 

in order to contribute to their strengthening.  We will 

also continue to identify innovations implemented 

in development banks through the organization of 

asociados.

Presidente de ALIDE

President of ALIDE

ALIDE 

ALIDE 

“ “

the ALIDE Prizes for 2022 and the launching of the 

Development Banking HUB, with the cooperation of 

the IDB and ECLA; this is a platform of platforms, made 

up of four tools:  the Community of Banking Practice 

for the transfer of information and knowledge, LATAM 

Projects in the infrastructure sector, Digital Banking 

self-diagnoses of digital maturity, and Public-Private 

Partnerships, whose objective is to help strengthen the 

In this annual report, we give a detailed account of 

our Latin American Association.  These results proved 

possible thanks to the commitment of the various 

institutional bodies, the efforts of our members, 

the links with different international networks and 

ALIDE teemwork .  We expect to continue mobilizing 

the collective capacities of the Latin American and 

Caribbean Development Banking Community, so that 

our services to our members will improve day-by-day.

Sincerely yours,
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La nueva normalidad 

The New Normality Following The Crisis

The year 2022 is marked by the return to the new 

normality following the pandemic triggered by the 

COVID-19 crisis. In Latin America and the Caribbean, 

in-person activities re-started, but without leaving 

our virtual activities.  In the meantime, the region’s 

governments reactivated all of their production 

activities to boost their economic recovery and 

started to promote joint efforts by the public and 

private sectors.       

For ALIDE, this juncture meant a reencounter with its 

members at several in-person events, the continued 

promotion of sustainable activities and digital 

through training events, virtual congresses, and 

webinars.  It also served as an opportunity to work in 

cooperation with its members on the development of 

knowledge platforms and tools that contribute to the 

sharing of experiences and innovative actions.    
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Resumen 
de las acciones de 
ALIDE en 2022:
Summary of actions taken by ALIDE in 2022:

de Desarrollo
HUB DE BANCAS

El Hub de Bancas 

The Banking Hub emerged as a vehicle for collecting and storing in a single space data 

areas associated with digital transformation, the exchange of knowledge, public-private 

partnerships, and investment in infrastructure, among others.  The Hub contains the following 

platforms:  

2 Development Banking Hub 

Banca Digital
la Banca de Desarrollo

Grupo de APPs Proyectos LATAM

Digital Banking

Group of PPPs LATAM Projects

Community of Development 
Banking Practice

de Acciones de la Banca de Desarrollo 
OBSERVATORIO

gobiernos

actions of development banks, international organizations, central banks and governments, in 

response to the pandemic.  The intention is to extend and guarantee the continued updating 

of information collection about the actions taken by different Latin American and Caribbean 

development banking organizations.   

1 Observatory of Development Banking Action  

reportes estudioscifras
reports studies
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de Especialización
ACTIVIDADES3 Specialization Activities 

MÁS DE

CURSOS ONLINES45
Estas actividades se dieron principalmente en formato digital 

e iniciativas conjuntas
REUNIONES 

52 Asamblea General de ALIDE | 

ALIDE led, co-organized and collaborated in international Banking and Development 

Financing meetings. These forums served to strengthen alliances and plan Development Bank 

alternatives for confronting the economic, environmental and food crises, in order to take 

action for a sustainable recovery.  

During the General Assembly held in Curazao, ALIDE strengthened links with its member 

other regions.  It also boosted the dissemination of pertinent knowledge and experiences 

about the day-to-day activities of development banks in digital and volatile environments, 

thereby contributing to the analysis and possible adoption of practices and new tools, and to 

networking among member banks in the post-pandemic context. 

4 Joint meetings and initiatives 

52nd ALIDE General Assembly | Innovative technologies and digitalization to promote Latin 
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265

250

22

de 28 países

22 17

9

países de América organismos 
internacionales

organismos 
internacionales

participants

participants
international 
organizations

countries of America 
and the Caribbean and 

from 28 countries

institutions from 9 countries 
outside the region

international 
organizations

7th° World Congress on Agricultural & Rural Finance | 

on agricultural and rural enterprises»

3era. Reunión de Economistas Jefes de Bancos de Desarrollo de América 

This congress was hybrid in format and its main aim was to be able to share the competencies 

about equitable growth, provide innovation and promote international cooperation.  

The roundtable on «Rethinking the Latin American and Caribbean Production Model for 

the Future World » was organized jointly by Banco de Inversión y Comercio Exterior (BICE) 

in collaboration with Banco de la Provincia de Buenos Aires, Argentina (BAPRO) and the 

Latin American Association of Development Financing Institutions (ALIDE), for the purpose 

of providing a vehicle for the discussion and exchange of views among the chief economists 

of the region’s Development Banks on the transformation of the production model, regional 

integration and the role of the Development Banks.   

7th World Congress on Rural and Agricultural Finance | «Response to the emerging global scenario: 

3rd Roundtable of Chief Economists of Latin American and Caribbean Development Finance 

Institutions «Rethinking the Latin American and Caribbean Production Model for the Future World » 

120
participants
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COP27 | 

Tercera Edición de la Cumbre Finance in Common 

ALIDE Secretary General, Edgardo Alvarez, participated in the panel discussion “Challenges for 

private sector in the developing countries; and the challenges that multilateral and bilateral 

development institutions face in providing the most vulnerable countries with assistance in 

undertaking a socially just transition to a low carbon economy.

The participation of Carlos Linares, ALIDE President, on a high-level FICS panel on “How to 

purpose was to explore the role of the private sector and of the capital markets in helping to 

hasten a green and just transition, as well as to promote a social transition and climate resilient 

economic growth. It was announced during the event that the Inter-American Development 

Bank (IDB) would, with the support of ALIDE, carry the FiCS Summit to Latin America in 2023.   

COP27 | «Climate Finance for Private Sector Development: Challenges for DFIs. Public and private 

sector action to combat climate change»

Third Finance in Common Summit 

e investigaciones 
ESTUDIOS

ALIDE published and participated in the preparation of documents and investigations on 

the actions taken by Latin American Development Banking to counter the economic crisis 

triggered by COVID-19, both on its own initiative and in collaboration with international 

institutions.  It also developed subject areas on innovative technologies and digitalization, 

5 Studies and research 



Nuestras acciones buscan aportar al fortalecimiento de 

Our actions seek to contribute towards strengthening the Development Banking 

the Latin American and Caribbean countries.   

1
CAPÍTULO

CHAPTER 

Acciones de la
comunidad de la
banca de desarrollo
Development Banking Community Actions 
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International forums and meetings

a. 52 Asamblea General de ALIDE | Tecnologías 

desarrollo
52nd General Assembly of ALIDE  | Innovative technologies and digitalization to promote Latin 

and other related organizations in Latin America, the Caribbean and other regions, 

and promoted the dissemination of pertinent knowledge of, and experiences on, the 

day-to-day activities of development banks in digital and volatile environments, 

thereby contributing to the analysis and possible adoption of practices and new 

tools and to networking among member banks in the post-pandemic context.    

It was in this context that ALIDE organized the 52nd regular meeting of the General 

Assembly in Willemstad, Curazao, from May 17 to 20, 2022, in a hybrid format. 

1.1  Foros internacionales y 
reuniones 

The key topic of this meeting was «Innovative 

technologies and digitalization to promote Latin 

American and Caribbean development,» which was 

overview of the economy and the technological changes 

that are reshaping production processes and services.  

And the third focused on the timeliness of investing in 

resilient productive, social and telecommunications 

infrastructure and integrating new technologies, in 

order to boost economic growth and the development 

of environmentally sustainable intelligent territories.

key element for the adoption and application of these 

important technological advances in the production, 

social and environmental sectors.  As a result, it is 

production and adoption of new technologies in the 

development process.  

During the Assembly, institutional matters concerning 

the Association were also discussed, such as the 

presentation of the 2021 Annual Report, the 2022-

2023 Work Program, and the venue for the next 

General Assembly, among other matters of special 

interest.  The ALIDE National Coordinators held a 

Meeting that was chaired by the CEO of the Curazao 

Development Corporation  (Korpodeko), Chesron 

Isidora.
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Te
m

ar
io

Tema 
Central

Key topic

Alliance of Subnational Banks Session

Seminario Caribe
Caribbean Seminar

Sesión de la Alianza de 
Bancos Subnacionales

A
G

EN
D

A

impulsar el Desarrollo 

Caribe.

Innovative Technologies 

and Digitalization to 

promote Latin American and 

Caribbean Development.  

Investment opportunities for building a resilient economy 

in the Caribbean and cooperation with the Latin American 

development banking system.  

The role of subnational development banks in 

enhancing implementation of the Green Climate Fund’s 

urban transportation strategy in Latin America and the 

Caribbean.  

Opportunities for Latin America and 

the Caribbean of an economy based on 

emerging technologies.

desarrollo.

Digitalization and transformation 

banking system.  

Investments in resilient infrastructure 

and development of intelligent 

territories.

PANEL I

PANEL II

PANEL III

(Presentation)

Sesión Sesión

del Mercado de Carbono 

Presentation of the Latin 

American and Caribbean 

Carbon Market Initiative 

(ILACC).

IDB PPP Group, 2022-2025 Work Plan.  

Development Banking Platform for Latin America and the Caribbean and Digital Tools.

desbancarización en 

How can de-risking or 

debanking be confronted in 

small economies? 

women’s enterprises in Latin America and the Caribbean.  

transition towards a greener 

and more climate-resilient 

economy.

CAF Session

Presentation

Presentation

Session

Panel

Session

Session: 

Climate risk management for development banks: from 
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Datos

Participants

Data

as well as from international organizations, registered and attended the 

meeting as delegates, observers and guests, both in person and virtually.   

The General Assembly took the form of videoconferences via Zoom that were 
streamed by YouTube in real time.   

LinkedIn and YouTube. 

belonged to institutions of 22 Latin American and Caribbean countries 

to institutions of 9 countries outside the region 

to 17 international organizations

a entidades de 

194

22

organismos internacionales
17 

Sesión 
de apertura
Opening session 
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Opening session 

Sesión de apertura

In his speech, the President of ALIDE referred to the 

difficulties that Latin America and the Caribbean 

are experiencing and emphasized the importance of 

promoting support and financing for development.   

He also stressed the need to «develop the digital 

ecosystem and back innovation and technological 

development,» in order to make the adoption 

and application of these new technologies more 

efficient.  

La inauguración de la 52 Asamblea General contó con la “ “

Desarrollo del Caribe. 

The President of Korpodeko, Shurmel Elias, in his 

words at the opening session, indicated that «the 

fact that this Assembly is being held in Curazao 

reflects the importance of the alliances that exist 

between Latin America and the Caribbean.»  He 

went on to underscore the significance of the 

different days of the Assembly «in the hope that 

we are able to voice our own opinions and create 

alliances that will enable us to advance our 

activities as financial institutions that contribute to 

economic development. »

The Minister of Economic Development of Curazao 

acknowledged the need to reshape the island’s 

economic and financial structure, in regard to which 

they expect to explore options for investment and 

planning with Latin American partners in greater 

detail.

To conclude, Prime Minister Gilmas Pisas stated 

that “holding the ALIDE Assembly in Curazao 

offers a unique opportunity to strengthen relations 

between the Latin American and the Caribbean 

development financing institutions,» and made 

the point that «for the Caribbean, it serves as a 

platform for expanding and joining up with the 

Latin American institutions, as well as for making 

use of the common knowledge to progress beyond 

our shortcomings and differences.»

It should be stressed that the keynote speech was 

made by Hyginus Leon, President of the Caribbean 

Development Bank. 
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Paneles
Panels

El panel I “ “
Panel 1

Panel 1

Edgar Pérez, international technology and finance 

expert, made the main presentation, the panel 

Bank Director for Latin America and the 

Caribbean (presentation); Ivan Cornejo, Director 

of International Financial Organizations of NAFIN, 

Mexico (presentation); Lukas Wellen, Director of 

Fern Software, in the United Kingdom (presentation); 

and Ricardo Rivera, Head of the Department of 

Technology and Connectivity-Intensive Industries 

of Banco Nacional de Desenvolvimento Económico 

e Social (BNDES), of Brazil. 
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En el panel II “ “

Panel 2
Panel 2

The panel members who spoke were Sandra 

Péloquin, Director of International Relations, and 

Jean-Sébastien Charest, Vice-President and Digital 

Transformation Leader of the Business Development 

Bank of Canada (BDC). Also participating were 

Juan Cuattromo, President of Banco de la Provincia 

de Buenos Aires (Bapro); Javier Diaz Fajardo, 

President of Banco de Comercio Exterior, of 

Colombia (Bancóldex); Gerardo Almaguer, CEO 

of Desarrollo Internacional Desjardins (DID); and 

Elías Bethencourt, Director for Latin America 

of AIS Group for Mexico. Panel III took up the 

topic  « Investments in resilient infrastructure 

and development of intelligent territories.» The 

chairman of the session and main speaker was 

Henrique Pissaia, FONPLATA-Banco de Desarrollo 

executive. The participating panelists were Sandra 

Gómez, President of Financiera de Desarrollo 

Territorial (Findeter), of Colombia; Rosario Casero, 

Director General of Business, Instituto de Crédito 

Oficial (ICO), of Spain; Francisco Demichelis, senior 

specialist of the Inter-American Development 

Bank’s (IDB) Connectivity, Markets and Finance 

Division; and Darick Jonis, CEO of Aqualectra, of 

Curazao.
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Special activities 

La intervención especial «Seminario: 

EL PRIMERO PANEL 

sustainable infrastructure we desire in the 

Caribbean with the support of development 

panelists were Darick Jonis, CEO of Aqualectra, 

for Operations in Latin America and the Caribbean 

of the European Investment Bank (EIB); y Dirk Jan 

de Graaff, CEO of DCSX.

EL SEGUNDO PANEL 

The second panel discussed the market for digital 

solution for the Caribbean.  The Chairman of ZINICA 

Group, Oswin M. Eleonora, served as moderator 

and the panelists were the Co-CEO of ClimateCoin, 

Javier Manzanares, and the Commercial Director of 

Tokeny, Daniel Coheur, who participated in person; 

and OSL Director General,  Fernando Martínez, who 

took part virtually. 

1er. 2do.

La presentación virtual 
the virtual presentation

The Coordinator of the PPP Regional Group, Juan Martínez Alvarez, was responsible for the virtual 

The special activity «Seminar: Investment opportunities for building a resilient economy in the 

Caribbean and cooperation with the Latin American development banking system» was opened with a 

keynote presentation given by Daniel Comito, adviser to the Caribbean Hotel and Tourist Association, 

and then separated into two panels. 

 

G.R. Chintala President of the National Bank for Agricultural and Rural Development (NABARD), 

of India, made the presentation «Watershed development as a tool for sustainable climate 

proofing.»G.R. Chintala.
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«Opportunities and challenges for the financial inclusion of women’s enterprises in Latin America 

and the Caribbean» was a virtual panel with Mariana Martinez, Regional Leader of FinEquity 

ALC, as its moderator, the panelists being Natalie Goff, General Manager of Development Finance 

Corporation (DFC), of Belize;  Roberto Romero, Chairman of the Board of Corporación Nacional de 

Finanzas Populares y Solidarias (CONAFIPS), of Ecuador; and Mario Salazar, President of Banco de 

Desarrollo de El Salvador (Bandesal). On that occasion, Cristina Lopez, consultant on Gender and 

Financial Inclusion issues presented the IDB publication «Best practices for the financing of women 

MSMEs in Latin America and the Caribbean.» 

During the virtual session « Climate risk management 

for development banks: from climate risk “heat 

Specialist, Gianleo Frisari, gave a presentation 

situating this tool in context and explaining its 

purposes. The subject was then described in greater 

depth, with the participation of the project manager, 

Caroline Fouvet, and the Analytics expert, Alvaro 

Linares, both working for Willis Tower Watson 

(WTW), the project consultant firm.  Mariana Paula 

Pereda of Banco de Desenvolvimento de Minas Gerais 

(BDMG), of Brazil, and Ángel O’Dogherty Madrazo 

of FIRA-Banco de México then explained the lessons 

learned from this application.  

The Alliance of Subnational Development Banks of Latin America and the Caribbean was in charge 

of the session on «The role of subnational development banks in enhancing implementation of the 

Green Climate Fund’s urban transportation strategy in Latin America and the Caribbean.»

«El papel de los bancos subnacionales de desarrollo potenciando la implementación 

A technical note was also presented by Dr. Emilio Lebre La Rovere, Director of the Climate Center 

of the Federal University of Rio de Janeiro, on the «Diagnosis of the Carbon Credits Market in Latin 

America and the Caribbean.» 

Gladis Genua, ILACC-CAF Director, presented The Latin American and Caribbean Carbon Market Initiative 

proposed work plan of the Initiative, whose purpose is to boost the global competitiveness of the supply of carbon 

credits produced in the region.   
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Giorgio Trettenero, Secretary General of Felaban made the main presentation at the session on «How 

can de-risking or debanking be confronted in small economies?» and the commentators were Susan 

Wong of the Central Bank of  Curazao and Saint Marten and Amalin L.A.C. Flanegin, Manager of the 

Supervisory Issues and Legal Affairs Division of the Central Bank of Aruba.   

The moderator of the session «Development finance and the transition towards a greener and more 

climate-resilient economy» was Jessica Jacob, CEO of Sureco & Partners.  The session was divided 

into two panels:  the first approached the issue from an international perspective and the panelists 

were Adama Mariko, Secretary General of FiCS and of the French Development Agency (AFD); 

Daniel Best, Project Director of the Caribbean Development Bank (CDB); Miguel Mendez, Head 

of Strategic Alliances and International Cooperation of the Central American Bank for Economic 

Integration (CABEI); and Kristin Lang, Head of the Latin America and Caribbean Division of the 

European Investment Bank (EIB).  The second panel took a national approach, the panelists being 

Adolfo Cáceres, President of the Fondo para el Financiamiento del Sector Agropecuario (FINAGRO), 

of Colombia; Lorena Sánchez, Economic Analysis and Sectoral Advisory Manager of Banco de la 

República Oriental del Uruguay (BROU); and virtually, Rafael Guerrero, Deputy Director for Water 

and Environmental Projects of Banco Nacional de Obras y Servicios Públicos (Banobras), of Mexico.

resiliente al clima» 

The Development Banking Platform for Latin America 

and the Caribbean and Digital Tools were presented 

through a video explaining the various initiatives/

speakers were Daniel Titelman, Director of ECLAC’s 

Economic Development Division, who introduced 

the Community of Practice platform; and Maria del 

Carmen Fernández and Pau Puig, IDB Specialists, who 

presented the Digital Banking platform, while Enrique 

Nieto, from the IDB, commented on the PPP platform; 

and Andrea Azeredo, Advisor to the Concessions 

Officer of BNDES, and Roberto Camarena, 

BANOBRAS Institutional Project Relations Manager, 

presented the LAC Projects platform.  
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«Sesgos de Crédito en el Financiamiento a Mipymes de Mujeres»

b. Foros y reuniones 

«Gender Biases in Women’s MSME Financing»

Forums and meetings 

Webinar 

During the webinar, attention was drawn to the importance of reinforcing 

the role of the Latin American and Caribbean development banking system 

in human talent management and generating an inclusive corporate 

women’s market segment.  This activity brought together 311 executives 

as of other regions of the world.   

ALIDE | IDB

ALIDE | BID

Virtual, February 23
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para el mundo que viene» 
3rd Roundtable of Chief Economists of Development Banks of Latin America and the Caribbean | 

«Rethinking the Latin American and Caribbean production model for the future world 

3era. Reunión de Economistas Jefes de Bancos de 

The roundtable on « Rethinking the Latin American and Caribbean production 

model for the future world» was organized jointly by Banco de Inversión y 

Comercio Exterior (BICE) in collaboration with Banco de la Provincia de Buenos 

Aires, Argentina (BAPRO) and the Latin American Association of Development 

Financing Institutions (ALIDE), in order to provide a venue for discussion and the 

exchange of views among the chief economists of the region’s Development Banks 

on the transformation of the production model, regional integration and the role 

of the Development Banking system.  An effort was made through dialogue to 

share pertinent experiences and practices in the region’s countries on problems 

environmental issues;  also to delve deeply into development and innovation, 

in order to encourage the designing of public policies oriented towards that 

end.   Roughly 120 participants attended the meeting, which was divided into 

in the participating institutions and the second was open to the general public 

interested in the subject and the specialized press.

BICE | Banco Provincia | ALIDE 
Buenos Aires, Argentina | September 21 and 22 

BICE | Banco Provincia | ALIDE 
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XXVI Ibero-American Forum on Guarantee Systems and Financing for SMEs  

Financiación para las Pymes 

ALIDE was present as an ally, cooperating in the organization and making a 

presentation on «The role of guarantee systems as a counter-cyclical instrument, 

with a vision from the vantage point of development banking.»  The aim of 

the panel organized by the Economic Commission for Latin America and the 

Caribbean (ECLAC), the Latin American Association of Development Financing 

Institutions (ALIDE) and Banco de Desenvolvimento de Minas Gerais (BDMG), 

was to examine the role of the national and subnational banking system in 

raising investment funds with environmental sustainability objectives and 

criteria.  

Esteban Pérez, Head of ECLAC’s Financing for Development Unit, acted 

as moderator, with the following people serving as commentators: Daniel 

Titelman, Director of the Economic Development Division of ECLAC; Daniel 

Fonseca, Principal Specialist for Financial Operations of the Inter-American 

Development Bank (IDB); and Vinício Stort, Director of Planning, Risks and 

Operations of Banco de Desenvolvimento de Minas Gerais (BDMG).

REGAR | ALIDE | Other institutions
San Salvador, El Salvador | October 12 to 14 
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Third Finance in Common Summit 

Tercera Edición de la Cumbre Finance in Common 

ALIDE President, Carlos Linares, and its Secretary General, Edgardo 

Alvarez, participated in the meeting of the FICS Executive Committee that 

was held on Tuesday, October 18.  The ALIDE President’s participation 

was also coordinated on a high-level FICS panel entitled «How to 

Mobilize Capital at Scale by Leveraging Private Finance.»  Its purpose 

was to examine the role played by the private sector and capital markets 

of helping to hasten a green and just transition and to promote the social 

transition and climate-resilient economic growth.  During the event, the 

announcement was made that the Inter-American Development Bank 

(IDB) would, with the support of ALIDE, be taking the FICS Summit to 

Latin America in 2023.  

BEI | AFD

EIB | AFD
Abidjan, Ivory Coast | October 18 to 20 
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enterprises»
7th World Congress on Agricultural & Rural Finance | «Response to the emerging global scenario: 

7th° World Congress on Agricultural & Rural Finance  

This event was jointly organized by Fideicomisos Instituidos en Relación Con la 

Agricultura --FIRA, Banco de México, and ALIDE, in collaboration with the regional 

and world associations, African Rural and Agricultural Credit Association (AFRACA); 

Asia-Pacific Rural and Agricultural Credit Association (APRACA), Near East-North 

Africa Rural & Agricultural Credit Association (NENARACA); and the International 

Confederation for Agricultural Credit (CICA). The World Congress on Agricultural 

and Rural Finance is held every three years for the purpose of bringing together 

the financial institution members of those Associations and all stakeholders in the 

development sector that are interested in discussing the issues that will define the 

future flow of financing to the rural and agricultural areas, carrying a powerful 

message to the global policy elaboration community.  In this seventh congress, 

the main goal was to be able to share the financial competencies in regard to the 

provision of financing for equitable growth, obtaining innovations, and promoting 

international cooperation from the outlook of the world regions.  The event attracted 

almost 250 participants from 28 countries and 9 international organizations.

ALIDE | FIRA

ALIDE | FIRA
Morelia, Mexico | November 23 to 25 
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«Climate Finance for Private Sector Development: Challenges for DFIs. 

COP27 | «Climate Finance for Private Sector Development: Challenges for DFIs. Public and private 

sector action to combat climate change»

COP27

The Secretary General, Edgardo Alvarez, participated in representation of 

ALIDE on the panel «Challenges for DFIs. Public and private sector action 

to combat climate change» organized by COFIDES in the Spanish pavilion 

at COP27.  The meeting dealt with the channeling of climate finance to 

the private sector in the developing countries and the challenges faced by 

multilateral and bilateral development finance institutions in helping the 

less developed and more vulnerable countries that are facing a transition 

towards a low carbon economy in a way that is socially just.

COFIDES

COFIDES
Sharm el-Sheij, Egypt | October 6 to 18 
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ALIDE convened the 2022 Competition for the ALIDE Prizes, with the aim of identifying and 

honoring the efforts of these institutions to further the economic and social development of the Latin 

American and Caribbean countries.  This year there were 10 prizewinners in various categories:

1.2  Fomento a las mejores 

a. Ganadores Premios ALIDE 2022

Banco do Nordeste de Brasil (BNB)

ALIDE 2002 Prizewinners 

Financial Products           

The program offers financing to students regularly enrolled in higher education 

courses at better-than-market interest rates, terms and conditions, with the aim 

of promoting education in order to reduce regional inequalities and fill the market 

with skilled labor to serve the region’s production sector.  The program is able to 

finance up to 100% of the cost of the course at a rate equivalent to the IPCA+0.38% 

of the broad consumer price index and a repayment period of up to three times the 

student’s period of financing.  

Categoría I       

Productos Financieros

Category I 
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The product seeks to promote the flow of resources needed for home building 

projects in the country.  The aim of the PPG is to protect financial institutions that 

have granted home building loans from the non-repayment of those loans on the 

part of their creditors by providing coverage of a percentage of each guaranteed 

loan, thereby reducing losses from non-compliance.  This coverage is offered to 

financial institutions that grant Bridge Loans (covering up to 20% of the loan) or 

Construction-Linked Loans (covering up to 50% of the loan).   

Sociedad Hipotecaria Federal de México
Pari-Passu Guarantee (PPG)       

Sociedad Hipotecaria Federal, of Mexico

Categoría I       
Category I

Desarrollo e innovación en App BNA+

BNA+Development and innovation Application 

Banco de la Nación de Argentina (BNA): BNA launched its BNA+ App 

in 2020 in response to the preventive and compulsory social isolation imposed of 

the population as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.  This application makes it 

possible to open an account remotely and 100% virtually for frequent transactions 

like payments, transfers and recharges.  It can also be used to order other financial 

products online, such as fixed-term services, loans, obtaining a place in a queue 

at branch offices, etc.  The App allowed for the banking of the income transfer 

policies established by the government during the COVID-19 crisis, enabling the 

beneficiaries to receive the assistance.  In March of 2022, it had over 5 million 

registered users and averaged 18 million transactions a day.  

Categoría II
Category II
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Sistema de Administración de Riesgos Ambientales 
y Sociales (SARAS)
Environmental and Social Risk Management System (SARAS)

Banco de Inversión y Comercio Exterior (BICE), of Argentina E l 

The product consists of an array of policies, tools, mechanisms and procedures for 

addressing non-financial socio-environmental risks and impacts with potential 

costs for both society and the customer and financial institution.  The adoption of a 

SARAS, for the analysis of a ground-floor banking portfolio (direct operations) and 

the identification of opportunities for sustainable business, has enabled BICE to 

Categoría II
Category II

Banco de Inversión y Comercio Exterior (BICE) 
Caldas de Colombia
Information, Technical Assistance and Social Responsibility INFICALDAS Reciprocity Policy 

Instituto de Financiamiento, Promoción y Desarrollo de Caldas, Colombia

The Reciprocity Policy seeks to establish a strategy for social action that promotes the 

development of cultural, artistic, sports and environmental activities that reinforce 

coexistence and territorial encounters.  

The aim of the program is to establish the reciprocity policy as an added value for 

municipal governments holding promotional loans wholly funded by the Institute’s own 

resources, in order to promote the social development of territories and disseminate 

the entity’s institutional image.  Up to 10% is returned to the local administrations, 

representing interest on the debt service.  

Categoría III

Información, Asistencia Técnica y 
Responsabilidad Social 

Category II
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(Banobras) de México
Digital Tools for Sustainable Infrastructure      
Banco Nacional de Obras y Servicios Públicos (Banobras), of Mexico

Launched in 2019, Banobras developed digital tools published on the Mexican Projects 

platform that are oriented toward sustainable infrastructure analyses. They are made 

available to the public in the form of an information platform and a clearly-defined 

methodology of sustainability criteria for infrastructure assets.  What is being sought is for 

the projects to maximize their impact on society and to link up investors and developers 

with the most important government-developed infrastructure projects.  The objectives 

of these tools are to: share good practices, facilitate a knowledge of sustainability within 

Banobras, obtain references for project structurers, incorporate useful methodologies on 

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) issues, promote alliances with national and 

international stakeholders, serve as a national and international source of reference on the 

subject, and provide grounds for aligning infrastructure projects with the SDGs.  

Herramientas Digitales para 
Infraestructura Sostenible

Categoría ALIDE Verde
ALIDE Green Category

Valle del Cauca) de Colombia
Local economic development strategy in the northern Cauca Valley    

INFIVALLE (Instituto Financiero para el Desarrollo del Valle del Cauca), of Colombia

This strategy is justified by the existence of regional inequalities, gaps in opportunities 

facing rural families and the risk of unavailability of, or lack of access to, water 

in the Cauca Valley hydrographic basins.  Its purpose is to promote sustainable 

rural development, institutional strengthening, peace, and generational transfers.   

The projects were implemented jointly with a more comprehensive vision: «Local 

committees), «Routes to Peace» (trainings for small agricultural producers) and « 

Generational transfers, the key to sustainable development of the rural sector in the 

Cauca Valley» (digital platforms for agricultural marketing) as part of the strategy. 

Categoría III

Estrategia de desarrollo económico 
local en el norte del Valle del Cauca 

Category III
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Export-Import Bank of India (Exim Bank)
Rising Stars Program (Ubharte Sitare)      

Export-Import Bank of India (Exim Bank)

The program aims to improve India’s competitiveness in specific sectors by providing 

financing; identify and nourish enterprises with differentiated technology, products or 

processes;  help units endowed with an export potential that are unable to expand their 

operations because of a lack of financing; identify and mitigate the challenges faced 

by enterprises, which  impede their exports and help existing exporters to expand their 

product offering and to enter new markets.  

Programa Estrellas Nacientes 

Categoría Bancos Extrarregionales
Extra-regional Banks Category

Banco Nacional de Costa Rica 

Banco Nacional de Costa Rica 

Despite the growing number of economically active women and of new enterprises 

run by women in Costa Rica, a gap still exists in the loan portfolio and in the banking 

products granted to women compared with the rest of the portfolio.   This offered an 

opportunity for new business and to increase the profitability of these customers.   It 

potential of this emerging market and accelerate the growth of enterprises in the hands 

of women and their impact on development.  The program is oriented toward building up 

the entrepreneurial competence and capacities of the participants, as well as to improve 

the entrepreneurial structures of the business ventures they lead.  

Programa Mujeres 360 de BN Mujer 

Categoría Apoyo a la Mujer Emprendedora
Support for the Woman Entrepreneur Category
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Financing of Women Entrepreneurs: Social Gender-denominted Bond Issues in Mexico    

The objectives of these issues are to: acknowledge the importance of gender equity as a 

matter of economic efficiency; obtain resources in the debt market with which to finance 

production projects and enterprises with the participation of, or led by, women; and 

promote women’s economic and social development by fostering a larger number of labor 

million). The first issue benefited 10,007 women and the resources were distributed 

Financiamiento a Mujeres Emprendedoras: 
Emisión de Bonos Sociales de Género en México

Categoría Apoyo a la Mujer Emprendedora
Support for the Woman Entrepreneur Category

b. Banco del Año 2022
b. Bank of the Year 2022

The honor of being the Bank of the Year 2022 was 

accorded to Banco de Desenvolvimento de Minas 

institution controlled by the state of Minas Gerais 

that operates both in and outside the state.  Its assets 

are on the order of US$1,510 million and its equity at 

December of 2021 totaled US$ 373.5 million. It was 

selected as Bank of the Year for demonstrating the 

following outstanding features: 

Its extensive coverage and support for the local economy, inasmuch as it operates in 793 

of the 853 municipalities of Minas Gerais state (93%), performing the valuable function of 

decentralizing credit and development.  
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In line with the foregoing, it was the first Brazilian development bank to accede to the Women’s 

Empowerment Principles, a set of commitments established by the UN Global Compact and by 

UN Women.  

The role it played during the COVID-19 crisis, when at the height of the pandemic it increased its 

disbursements by 118% and it loan portfolio by almost 50%.  

Its impact on the State’s economy.  According to studies that have been made, it has been noted 

over a 10-year period that for every dollar the bank has disbursed, it has generated an additional 

and has created more than 382 thousand new jobs.  

Its presence in international networks and initiatives like Finance in Common and the UN 

Climate Change COP Summit.

with at least one of the 17 SDGs.  

Studies, Reports and Research 

1.3  Estudios, Informes e 

Basic Study | ALIDE | May 

Estudio Básico | ALIDE | Mayo 

This document seeks to provide an overview of different aspects of the new technologies, 

their advances, implications and the opportunities they offer in LAC.  It also compiles 

information about actions taken and advances made by Latin American DFIs in 

implementing the transition towards digitalization.  The document is organized into four 

parts that include successful experiences demonstrating how DFIs are making it possible 

to develop these technologies and for the transition of the LAC sectors.

«Innovative Technologies and Digitalization to 

Promote Latin American Development »

«Tecnologías Innovadoras 
y Digitalización Para 
Impulsar el Desarrollo 

 la cumbre 
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«Report of the Roundtable of Chief Economists of the 
Latin American and Caribbean Development Finance 
Institutions «Rethinking the Latin American and 
Caribbean Production Model for the Future World» 

«Informe Reunión de 
Economistas Jefes de 

y el Caribe Repensando la 

Mundo que Viene» «Responses of Latin American Development 

Banks to the Economic Crisis engendered 

by COVID-19, in Particular in the Agricultural 

and SME Sectors»

American Development 
Banks to the Economic 
Crisis by the COVID-19 in 

and SMES Sectors» 

Technical document | ALIDE | October Technical document in English | ALIDE | September

Documento técnico | ALIDE | Octubre

crisis de la pandemia.

This document sets out the main ideas, proposals and results of the Third Roundtable of Chief 

Economists of the Latin American and Caribbean Development Financing Institutions.  The 

purpose of the meeting was to hold a discussion about the transformation of the production 

model, regional integration and the role of the Development Banking system.  It was sought, 

through a dialogue, to share pertinent experiences and practices of the countries in the region 

environmental matters; also to delve further into the topics of development and innovation, in 

order to promote the designing of public policies on those matters.

During the crisis triggered by COVID-19, the Latin American governments announced a 

series of policies and programs to support the production sectors and/or protect enterprises 

and the general public, particularly in the most vulnerable sectors.  In implementing many of 

those measures, the development banks gave proof of serving as an important public policy 

instrument. This study focuses on the measures and actions taken and the role played by the 

medium enterprise, during the turbulence of the pandemic.  
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Book | ALIDE | December-January

Libro | ALIDE | Diciembre-Enero

This book collects and gives a detailed description of the ALIDE 2022 prizewinning programs, 

countries of origin.  The prizewinning best practices were to be found in banks in Argentina, 

Brazil, Colombia, Costa Rica, India and Mexico. All of these initiatives and innovations share 

and helping to protect the environment, with a social and sustainable development approach 

grounded in the new technologies.  

sustainable development and inclusion in Latin 
America and the Caribbean»

innovadoras para impulsar 
el desarrollo sostenible y la 

el Caribe»

Technical assistance and in-service trainings 

1.4  Asistencia técnica y 

In 2022, ALIDE strengthened relations with its 

member financial institutions and other associated 

organizations in Latin America, the Caribbean and 

other regions and promoted the dissemination of 

pertinent knowledge and experiences regarding 

the day-to-day activities of development banks 

in digital and volatile environments, thereby 

contributing to the analysis and possible adoption 

of new practices and tools and to networking among 

member banks in the post-pandemic context.  

As a result, ALIDE’s Technical Assistance Program 

made overtures aimed at organizing congresses, 

seminars and technical-bilateral meetings for the 

purpose of transmitting good practices between 

development finance institutions offering and 

requesting such assistance.  The subject areas that 

were examined were: human talent management, 

digital means of payment and financial inclusion, 

treasury and international financing, financing of 

electromobility, the orange or creative economy, 

management of banking risks, development 

banking and fintech.  
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The activities carried out, for the most part virtually, 

proved possible thanks to the generous institutional 

cooperation of a group of member development 

banks and other organizations and professionals 

with close links to our Association.  Accordingly, we 

enjoyed the special collaboration as co-organizers 

and/or speakers of: KfW- Development Bank of 

Germany; BICE and Banco Provincia, of Argentina; 

Banco do Nordeste and BNDES, of Brazil;  Corfo, 

of Chile; Bancóldex, of Colombia; Korpodeko, of 

Curazao; Banco Nacional de Costa Rica; ICO, of 

Spain; Banobras, FIRA, Financiera Emprendedores 

and Nafin/Bancomext, of Mexico; Banco Nacional 

de Fomento, of Paraguay; Cofide, of Peru; BROU, of 

Uruguay; and international financial organizations 

like the EIB, IDB and CAF. 

A numerous group of institutions kindly 

collaborated as commentators: BIND Banco 

Industrial, Mercado Pago, Humanize Consulting 

and Olivia consultora, of Argentina; Banco Pyme 

Ecofuturo, of Bolivia; Marulanda & Consultores and 

Fintech Bankamoda, of Colombia; MasterCard, of 

Costa Rica, the consulting firm of Triviere Partners, 

of Spain; la Federación de Industrias Creativas 

(FIC), of Paraguay; and the Fintech “Innova 

of the following professionals was also valuable: 

Hugo Beltrán, Bruno Diniz, and Juan Carlos Estepa 

as speakers; and of Luis Felipe Oliva, Nausica Trias 

(AIS España), Ramón Heredia and David Cancino 

(Digital Bank) as moderators. 

270 

16

7

36

General participation: 

Europa

seminarios y congresos
directors and executives 

participating countries of 
Latin America, the Caribbean 
and Europe 

seminars and congresses

institutions 
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Congreso de Directores del Talento   

Congress of Human Talent Directors of Financial Institutions 

Talento Humano
Trends and Challenges in Talent Management 
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in the area of human talent in development banks and bank superintendencies 

of seven Latin American countries a holistic vision of experiences, successful 

cases and trends in the management of human talent, explained by consultants 

and experts from Latin American and Spanish banks.  Issues were examined 

in reference to culture and organizational capacities, commitment and results 

in organizations, cultural transformation of organizations; the employee’s 

experience, talent well-being and leadership and People Analytics. A dialogue 

was held with managers of development banks and panelists on leadership, post-

pandemic talent management, and the role of the SDGs in the organizations, 

among other matters.  Consultants and professional experts from the following 

organizations participated as commentators and panelists:  BICE, Banco 

Provincia, Humanize Consulting, and Olivia consultora, of Argentina; Banco 

Pyme Ecofuturo, of Bolivia; Banco Nacional de Costa Rica; the consulting firm of 

Triviere Partners, of Spain; Banobras and FIRA, of Mexico; and Cofide, of Peru. 

The consulting firm Aplicaciones de Inteligencia Artificial, of Spain, acted as 

moderator of one of the sessions.      

ALIDE

ALIDE
Virtual, April 11, 12 and 13 
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Digital Means of Payment and Financial Inclusion
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Seminario Online 
Online Seminar 

ALIDE organized this seminar with the collaboration of a group of member 

development banks in order to share knowledge about, and experiences in, the 

conception, execution and improvement of digital transformation processes and 

digital products and services for promoting the financial inclusion of micro, small, 

and medium enterprises and entrepreneurs.  Speakers from Banco Provincia, 

of Argentina, Banco do Nordeste do Brasil, and Bancóldex, of  Colombia, gave 

talks about different subjects, among them digital and cultural transformation, 

digital channels and open finance, data governance and digital wallet, process 

automation, and the Neocredit and Digital Leasing platforms.  A total of 22 

executives and professionals working in different areas (business, operations, 

risks, and technology) of development banks and bank superintendencies of five 

Latin American countries participated in the seminar. 

ALIDE

ALIDE
Virtual, June 27, 28 and 30 
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estratégica para la banca de desarrollo
The Orange or Creative Economy: Strategic line for development banks
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Seminario Online 
Online Seminar 

ALIDE organized this seminar in order to provide the Latin American and 

Caribbean community of Development Finance Institutions with knowledge and 

experiences illustrating the importance and contribution of creative and cultural 

enterprises to our economies, the management and support of the development 

banks to this sector, and the vision and challenges of creative entrepreneurs, 

among other subjects.   During the course of the seminar, the subjects that were 

and as a promoter of inclusive development, the financial and technical assistance 

given to this sector, the business model used by the Bankamoda Fintech and the 

implementation of creative bonds in Paraguay.  The collaboration provided by 

the IDB in the designing of the program and as speaker and moderator proved to 

be valuable and the seminar was also able to enjoy the participation of speakers 

from Bancóldex, of Colombia, Korpodeko, of Curazao, CORFO, of Chile, CAF, and 

the Federación de Industrias Creativas, of Paraguay, and of entrepreneurs from 

Curazao and Paraguay.  Thirty development bank executives from four Latin 

American countries and two international organizations participated.

ALIDE

ALIDE
Virtual, July 25, 26 and 27
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Treasury and International Finance in uncertain and volatile scenarios 
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de Desarrollo 

Development banks (multilateral, regional, subregional or national) are instrumental in 

furthering Latin American and Caribbean progress.  Although they channel resources for 

development, they must face challenges such as in the management and allocation of 

financial resources in scenarios of greater uncertainty in financial markets and economies 

with more needs, or in obtaining the necessary financing for their initiatives.  It was in 

this context that ALIDE organized the Congress in order to explain the trend in Latin 

American development banking management in regard to treasury, funding and financing 

aspects; share experiences in, and reflections on, the management of development banks 

and multilateral banking in fund-raising and resource allocation; and review development 

banking practices regarding international emissions, financing challenges and 

opportunities, risks in providing resources for development, and thematic bonds and their 

structuring, among other matters.  As institutional speakers, we drew on the collaboration 

and participation of development banks such as BNDES (Brazil), Bancóldex (Colombia), 

ICO (Spain), Nafin/Bancomext (Mexico), and Cofide (Peru) and of international financial 

organizations like the IDB, EIB, and CAF. Luis Felipe Oliva, ALIDE consultant, collaborated 

in the moderating of presentations.  Seventeen directors, managers and professionals 

of development banks and bank superintendencies of seven Latin American countries 

participated in the event.   

ALIDE

ALIDE
Virtual, October 6, 7 and 10 
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Financing of e-mobility.  How can the potential offered by electrifying urban 
transportation be freed? 
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Seminario Online 
Online Seminar 

to share KfW’s experiences in promoting electric mobility in Germany and the 

opportunities to reinforce its support for electrifying urban transportation 

in Latin American and Caribbean countries.   Representatives of Banobras, of 

by sharing their observations and technical papers as panelists, in regard to the 

financing of electric mobility in the public transportation sector.  The seminar 

attracted the interest of 108 development bank officials of seven Latin American 

countries, Germany and four international organizations.   

ALIDE y KfW – banco de desarrollo de  
Alemania

ALIDE and KfW – development bank of 
Germany 
Virtual, October 18 
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Congreso de Directores de Riesgos de 

Congress of Financial Institution Risk Directors  

complejos
Management of Banking Risks in complex scenarios 
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ALIDE promoted the holding of a new Congress for the purpose of contributing knowledge 

about, and experiences in, the current management of banking risks and the trends and 

vision in this sector, with a view towards furthering the examination and adoption of new 

strategies and actions to strengthen the banking system.  It brought together speakers 

from  Banco Provincia and BICE, of Argentina, Banco Nacional de Costa Rica (BNCR), 

Financiera Emprendedores, of Mexico,  Cofide, of Peru, and Banco de la República 

Oriental del Uruguay. Furthermore, Representatives of MasterCard of Costa Rica, 

Nemesis Consultores, of Spain, and Credicorp, of Peru made important presentations. 

BNCR collaborated in moderating one of the sessions.  Among the topics addressed were 

the management of banking risks in complex scenarios, challenges and opportunities; 

management of the agenda of ESG (environmental, social and governance) risks; 

management of cybersecurity; implementation of Basel in Peru; analysis of market risks; 

and daily dialogue sessions were promoted among development bank risk managers on 

the management of post-pandemic risks, impact of regulations, development of credit 

risk models, and institutional strengthening of the banks.  Sixteen directors, executives 

and professionals in the risk area of development banks and financial intermediaries of 

eight Latin American countries participated in the event.   

ALIDE

ALIDE
Virtual, November 28, 29 and 30 
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Congress of Financial Institutions 

inclusion  
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The Association organized this Congress in order to examine the importance of, and recent 

actions taken by, development banks and Fintech to promote digital transformation and the 

development of more agile and competitive products and services, and the growth of MSMEs; 

give a detailed account of the trend in, and importance of, open finance and its implications 

for development banks; and learn about cases of start-ups.  Consultants and executives of 

Latin American development financing institutions shared their experiences on: Trends in 

finance using invoices made out to the micro and small enterprise sector, and Bancóldex, 

digital platform (connects microentrepreneurs with financial allies).  Also examined were the 

public policy objectives and benefits of payment digitalization, the case of the Central Bank 

of Brazil’s Pix public infrastructure; Banco Nacional de Fomento (BNF), of Paraguay’s, data 

governance program; the Banking-Fintech alliances; and the presentation of the histories of 

seven Start-ups (Floid, Somos Radar, Solven, Sumeria, Quikly, Embedx, and Snap-Compliance) 

on models of disruptive businesses in Latin America.  Speakers from Banco Provincia, BIND, 

and Mercado Pago, of Argentina; Bancóldex, of Colombia, BNF, of Paraguay; the Spiralem 

Peru; and representatives of the Start-ups cited above all participated.  The IDB collaborated 

in designing the program and acting as moderator, while the Digital Bank enterprise helped 

with the moderation.  Thirty-seven development bank and central bank directors, managers 

and professionals from eight Latin American countries and three international organizations 

participated in the Congress.   

ALIDE con el apoyo del BID

ALIDE with the support of the IDB 
Virtual, December 6 and 7 
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“ “
Executives of Corporación Financiera Nacional (CFN), of Ecuador, took part in a virtual meeting with 

teams from BNDES, of Brazil, and Banco Provincia, of Argentina, who shared their good practices in 

digital transformation and technological infrastructure processes, among other things.  The meeting 

took place in February.  

A mission from Banco Popular y de Desarrollo Comunal, of Costa Rica, had the opportunity to visit 

the headquarters of Bancóldex and the Financial Superintendency, of Colombia, in September; and 

the Superintendency of Banking, Insurance and PFAs (Pension Fund Administrators), Mibanco, 

and ALIDE headquarters, in Peru. The mission also included meetings in Argentinean financial 

institutions.  Experiences with microfinance (policies, regulation, products, risks, and technological 

innovation, etc.) were examined, together with financial inclusion programs and Bancóldex’s 

Neocredit program, among others.

ALIDE made approaches to BICE, of Argentina, and FIRA, of Mexico, to request their collaboration 

with Banco de Desarrollo Productivo, of Bolivia, in transmitting their experiences with trusts.  

a. 

b. 

c. 

Technical assistance to banks 

Asistencia  
técnica a bancas
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Approaches were made to our member institutions for the exchanges of experiences planned for the 

year 2023. ALIDE  arranged with Banco Provincia de Buenos Aires for the in-service training “New 

be offered in Buenos Aires, Argentina, in March of 2023. 

ALIDE also coordinated the ALIDE Mission to Germany in 2023 with KfW. Garantizar SGR, of 

Argentina, for its part, offered its collaboration in organizing an in-service training with ALIDE on 

was to include good practices of the institution as leader of the guarantee system and of other 

Training

1.5  Capacitación

Over the year of 2022 and in a continuation of 

the social distancing provisions, ALIDE organized 

open online courses, four were online and in-person 

hybrid in-house courses, two were webinars and 

three conventions were held where talks were given 

by ALIDE experts.  In addition, two training and 

consultancy activities were conducted.  

A total of 1,200 representatives of banks and 

development finance institutions, risk raters, 

consultancy firms, guarantee firms, environmental 

organizations, multilateral financial organizations, 

pension fund administrators and banking 

supervisory organizations from 21 Latin American, 

Caribbean and European countries participated in 

these activities.  Of this total, 70.5% were member 

and the remaining 29.5% were non-members, with 

attended the webinars and talks, respectively. 

ALIDE In-service trainings

ALIDE
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Los temas de los cursos fueron variados: 

gobernabilidad de datos, riesgos tecnológicos y 

de ciberseguridad, gestión de la ciberseguridad y 

ciberresilencia, generación de valor en los datos 

usando Big Data y apalancando la innovación, 

bancaria, Fintech y el fomento de la inclusión social 

y análisis de los condicionantes económicos y 

concentración y modelos dinámicos de volatibilidad, 

gestión del riesgo operacional, gestión de riesgos 

mercado de capitales, gestión por procesos, gestión 

innovación para gerentes de talento humano en la 

era digital, gobierno corporativo, gestión del riesgo 

de lavado de activos, y cumplimiento institucional 

y riesgos de lavado de dinero, entre otros temas de 

actualidad.

The topics of the courses varied: data governance, 

technological and cybersecurity risks, management 

of cybersecurity and cyberresilience, generating data 

value by using Big Data and leveraging innovation, 

industry, Fintech and the promotion of social 

based credit risk and collection management, crisis 

management, strategic risk in pandemics and new 

business models, credit risk models and expected loss 

under IFRS 9 and Basel, asset and liability management 

with liquidity gaps, limits and alerts, integral 

liquidity risk management including concentration 

and dynamic volatility models, operational risk 

management, risk management in trust operations 

and business, development banking and capital market 

management of the training process, innovation 

management for human talent managers in the digital 

era, corporate governance, money laundering risk 

management, and institutional compliance and money 

laundering risks, among other current issues.  

capacitados. 

“ “
sumó el uso de la herramienta de la videoconferencia 

las clases por este medio y siendo apoyadas estas 

repositorio de los materiales didácticos, las clases 

grabadas, las lecturas complementarias, la entrega de 

mass education tool.  Videoconferences via Zoom and 

Teams were added and classes were taught through 

this medium, supported by activities on ALIDE’s virtual 

campus as the repository for teaching materials, 

recorded classes, complementary readings, delivery 

of papers and grading of examinations, as well as to 

maintain uninterrupted communication among the 

students and with the ALIDE team.  



ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2022

A
N
N
U
A
L R
E
P
O
R
T

M
E
M
O
R
IA
 A
N
U
A
L

2022
A

N
N

U
A

L R
E

P
O

R
T

M
E

M
O

R
IA

 A
N

U
A

L

MEMORIA ANUAL 2022

Resumen general: 

26 4 3 3

General summary: 

cursos online 
abiertos,

4 online y presencial 
in-house,

webinarios conferencias

and online, and in-house,

3 webinars 3 talks.  

de los cuales 

webinarios
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Capacitación Online

Curso online |
Online course | «Technological and cybersecurity risks»

Participants learned: 

The dynamics of technological risks, information security risks and cybersecurity risks in an 

institution.

We have trained 1,200 people from 20 countries of Latin America and the 

Caribbean, the U.S., Asia, Africa and Europe, 885 of them through open and 

closed online and in-person courses, 212 via webinars and 103 were present 

at conventions.  

The human and material requirements within an organization that are needed to manage 

cybersecurity risks.

February 21 to March 21

Online Training 

Capacitación 
Online

1. 

2. 

35 training events were held: 
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Venezuela.

risks, among others.  The participants were from the risk, technology, compliance, systems audit 

and auditor areas of Costa Rica, Ecuador, El Salvador, Guatemala, Honduras, Panama, Peru and 

Uruguay.

Ecuador, El Salvador, Guatemala, Honduras, Mexico, Paraguay, Uruguay and Venezuela 

the concepts associated with operational risks, to prepare models for their rating and to 

measure the impact of the various methods for calculating the capital needed to cover 

operational risks and their impacts by presenting real case studies and discussing and 

sharing information about experiences with the participants.  

Taller online | 

riesgo operacional 
en instituciones 

Online workshop | «Operational 

institutions»

March 1 to April 5.

 

Participants were given training in the meaning of data governance, which is not limited 

entrepreneurial returns.    Those participating were from the loan, business, processes, 

trade, product, marketing, operations, processes, security and IT (information technology) 

areas of Argentina, Bolivia, Colombia, Costa Rica, the Dominican Republic, Ecuador, El 

Salvador, Guatemala, Honduras, Paraguay, Uruguay y Venezuela.

Curso online  | 

de datos en las 
instituciones 

Curso online | 

Online course | «Data governance 

guide and best practices»

institutions »

March 17 to April 13.

3. 
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Training was provided to participants from the areas of products, risks, marketing and legal 

matters of Argentina, Bolivia, Costa Rica, Ecuador, El Salvador, Guatemala, Honduras, 

Mexico, Panama and Peru, on the tools for strategic risk analysis and evaluation of new 

products and business, making it possible to give practical consideration to different 

alternatives and choose the most appropriate, bearing in mind the uncertainty and 

available strategies for its mitigation. 

mercado. 

Guatemala, Honduras, Paraguay and Peru were equipped with the necessary tools to 

give them the capacity to prepare, state and defend sound criteria on how to manage and 

administer the different risks to which both people authorized to act as trustees and the 

different kinds of trust products that are traded in the market are exposed.  

Curso online  | 

Online course | «Risk management 
in trust operations and business» 

The participants, from the areas of selection, training, human talent, administration, loans 

and marketing of Bolivia, Costa Rica, El Salvador, Haiti, Panama, Paraguay, and Uruguay, 

were provided with the most recent knowledge in order to give them a full understanding 

of the principles and practices for making training a process of strategic value to the 

institutions.

reviewed.  Even so, the main purpose of the course was to identify the problem to be resolved 

Argentina, Costa Rica, El Salvador, Honduras, Mexico, Paraguay, Peru and Uruguay.

Curso online |    

fomento de la 

Online course | «Fintech and the 

inclusion »

April 5 to May 10.

Curso online | «Hacia una gestión estratégica del proceso de 

Online course | «Towards strategic management of the training process: its 
impact on institutional goals»

 April 20 to May 25
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y Uruguay.

The complete development process of a project was explained from its very inception, so that each 

phase could be studied to determine the existing needs and risks, in order to understand the global 

commercial and IT areas of Argentina, Costa Rica, Ecuador, El Salvador, Honduras, Mexico, 

Paraguay, Peru and Uruguay.

Curso online  | 

Estructuración 

condicionantes 

Structuring and analysis 

constraints»

 April 28 to June 2

The participants, representatives of the areas of consultancy, technical assistance, research and 

development, product and service analysis, organizational development, product and service 

design, entrepreneurial promotion, supervision, monitoring, funding monitoring and structuring, 

and credit analysis of Argentina, Bolivia, Costa Rica, Ecuador, El Salvador, Guatemala, Honduras, 

the Caribbean, assessed risks and opportunities for business in the framework of sustainable 

mitigation tools, as well as for taking advantage of funding opportunities via thematic bonds and 

other instruments.  Practitioners from Banco Galicia, of Argentina, IDB Invest, and the Financial 

Superintendency of Colombia were invited to share their experiences, as were special guests of 

the French Development Agency (AFD) and the Inter-American Development Bank (IDB), who 

Programa online  |   

para bancos e 
instituciones  

desarrollo»
Online program | «Sustainable 
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Participants were given an understanding of asset and liability management, including why and 

for whom the steps are taken and what tools are involved. They were also taught the principal 

indicators to complete the picture. Those attending were representatives of the market and 

liquidity risk supervision, product and service design, supervisory, auditing, asset and liability 

Republic, Ecuador, El Salvador, Guatemala, Honduras, Mexico, Nicaragua, Paraguay, Peru, and 

Uruguay.

Curso online  | 

Online course | «Asset and liability management 
with liquidity gaps, limits and alerts»

Participants from the areas of treasury, planning, administration, corporate governance, 

operations, and human capital of the Dominican Republic, Ecuador, El Salvador, Guatemala, 

Honduras, Mexico, Nicaragua, Paraguay, Peru, and Uruguay were trained in the concept, 

governance, through the use of a practical guide to the methodology, whose study will lead 

to a full understanding of the subject.   

Curso online |   

para instituciones 

Online course | «Corporate 

institutions»

June 7 to July 7

Participants were taught about the importance of, and need for, creating value for data in 

a controlled and high-quality environment that would facilitate the innovation of products 

of the loan, business, operations, marketing, processes, security and technology areas of El 

Salvador, Guatemala, Honduras, Panama, Peru and Uruguay.

Curso online | 

Online course | «How can value be created for data using Big Data and 
leveraging innovation in development banks?»

June 15 to July 13
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environment and to promote leadership in implementing innovative strategies and models aimed 

at transforming and upgrading organizational practices. The participants were from the human 

resources, organizational development, planning and strategic management, remunerations and 

administration areas of Bolivia, Ecuador and Guatemala.

A full picture of credit and collection risk was given to the participants, from the areas of risk, 

Bolivia, Costa Rica, the Dominican Republic, Ecuador, El Salvador, Nicaragua, and Uruguay. The 

overview, starting with its underlying theory, ended with its application as a management tool.  

The elements of credit risk were dealt with from the outlook of the business, portfolio management 

and collection.  

Curso online  |  

para gerentes de 

implementación»

Curso online | 

Online course | «Innovation 
management for human talent 
managers in the digital era.  
Implementation route»

Online course | «Data analysis-based credit and collection risk management»

June 22 to July 20.

June 30 to July 27

(MFI) at the LATAM level was enhanced.  Strategies were developed for achieving more 

Colombia, Costa Rica, Curazao, El Salvador, Guatemala, Mexico, Nicaragua, Panama, 

Paraguay and Peru.

Curso online |   

efectividad en los 
resultados de unidades 
de negocios»
Online course | «Strategic 

to produce a greater impact on 
business unit earnings»

July 21 to September 1

Curso online | 

Online course | «Credit risk and expected loss models under IFRS 9 and Basel»

August 2 to September 1



ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2022

A
N
N
U
A
L R
E
P
O
R
T

M
E
M
O
R
IA
 A
N
U
A
L

2022
A

N
N

U
A

L R
E

P
O

R
T

M
E

M
O

R
IA

 A
N

U
A

L

MEMORIA ANUAL 2022

Ecuador, El Salvador, Mexico, and Uruguay learned about the scope of application of IFRS 9 

standards in the credit area, to make calculations using widely accepted models, to compare 

the IFRS standards approach to that of the Basel regulations and to familiarize themselves 

with additional models that helped them implement credit risk models in their institutions.

Salvador y Honduras.

An overall picture was provided of the various elements involved in regulatory compliance in 

and controlling both compliance and money laundering risk were studied.  Those attending 

represented the compliance, money laundering prevention and administrative areas of Bolivia, 

Costa Rica, Ecuador, El Salvador and Honduras.

Curso online  | 

riesgos de lavado 
de dinero en bancos 
e instituciones 

Online course | «Institutional 
compliance and money laundering 

institutions»

August 10 to September 7.

mercado de capitales y mesa de dinero 

Uruguay.

The participants’ level of consciousness was raised regarding the continuous 

need to revise the basic political and strategic conceptions regarding the role 

of development banks and the premises for action underlying the mandates 

business, capital market and money desk areas of Argentina, Brazil, Chile, 

Colombia, Honduras, Mexico, Paraguay, Peru and Uruguay.

Curso online | «Banca de Desarrollo e instrumentos de 

instruments»

August 22 to September
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Participants from the credit, project, risk, and business areas of Brazil, Ecuador, El Salvador, 

Guatemala, Mexico, Paraguay and Peru were given the necessary knowledge to prepare a basic 

project’s viability.  The aim was for them to gain an understanding of the structure and design of 

the different scenarios according to market standards.  

Curso online  | 

infrastructure, environmental sector and health 

September 1 to 29

A general overview was provided of the new business reality, from the proposals of new income 

models to investment in the implementation and development of new technologies, using a 

creation-of-value approach in the analysis.  An effort was made to have participants identify 

for project evaluation and their application using a business approach within an environment of 

innovation and modeling of new ventures.  The participants were from the legal, credit, project, 

Curso online |   

emprendimiento»
Online course | «Financial 
metrics in innovation and 
entrepreneurship»

Curso online | 

Online course | «Integral liquidity risk management including concentration and dynamic volatility models»

 September 20 to October 18
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It was explained to participants from the risk, treasury, credit, and auditing areas of Argentina, 

Bolivia, the Dominican Republic, Ecuador, El Salvador, Honduras, Paraguay, Peru, and Uruguay that 

that it requires many liquid assets when there are abrupt changes in balances, as is the case today.  To 

correct this situation, dynamic volatility models were developed, which proved to be indispensable in 

modern treasury management that considers liquidity management as a liability portfolio.

Curso online  | 
«Aplicaciones de 

bancaria para el 
fomento de la inclusión 

desarrollo»

ALIDE | 

España

(AI) applications in the Banking 

inclusion and development»

kinds and sizes in more than thirty countries were introduced, particularly innovative AI 

general, for the various strategic lines of banking action.  The AIS group has this experience, 

multilateral organizations like the World Bank, the IDB, and the African Development Bank. 

The participants were from the areas of general management, technology, channels, systems, 

Republic, El Salvador, Mexico, Peru, and Uruguay.

Uruguay.

The different cybersecurity technologies existing in the market were described, together with how they 

are incorporated in order to improve and upgrade an organization’s protection.  Participants from the 

IT, risk, technical support, direction, systems, information security and auditing areas of Ecuador, El 

Salvador, Guatemala, Panama, Paraguay and Uruguay were also taught to understand the human and 

material requirements for managing cybersecurity in an organization and to understand the structure 

of a cybersecurity plan, to diagnose the cybersecurity levels in an organization and be able to explain 

the levels of organizational cybersecurity and thus be able to develop a strategy for that purpose.

Curso online | 

ciberresilencia en 
bancos e instituciones 

Online course | «Management of 
cybersecurity and cyberresilience 

October 25 to   
November 22



ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2022
A

N
N

U
A

L R
E

P
O

R
T

M
E

M
O

R
IA

 A
N

U
A

L

2022

A
N
N
U
A
L R
E
P
O
R
T

M
E
M
O
R
IA
 A
N
U
A
L

MEMORIA ANUAL 2022

The concepts and methodology were provided for identifying, assessing and managing money 

laundering risk in accordance with recommendations, best practices and obligations.  Both 

the underlying theory for analysis and the tools for its application in the sector were taught to 

participants from the areas of regulatory compliance, risk, auditing, supervision, and money 

laundering of Costa Rica, the Dominican Republic, El Salvador, Nicaragua, and Peru.  The course 

also dealt with the components of money laundering risk and the analysis of processes whereby 

operational controls can be implemented.  

Online course | «Management of the money laundering risk.  Methodologies for the design and 

 October 31 to December 5

Curso online  | 

Uruguay y Venezuela.

institution customers, and for enterprises operating in various sectors. The role played 

Kreditanstalt für Wiederaufbau (KfW), of Germany, the French Development Agency (AFD) 

and the Inter-American Development Bank commented on the outlook for thematic bonds 

administrative, project, capital market, business and planning areas of Bolivia, Costa Rica, 

El Salvador, Honduras, Italy, Mexico, Panama, Peru, Uruguay and Venezuela.

Programa online  |   

desarrollo sostenible»
Online program | «Thematic 

development»

November 2 to 30
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In-House Training

Capacitación  
In-House

de Gobierno de Datos – 
GOBERDATA | 

Kick-Off of the Data Governance 

a Data-Driven enterprise» 

Participants were informed about the data 

governance program and what it means for BNF to be 

a data-driven enterprise.  This training was provided 

to high-level executives of the bank, of which a total 

ALIDE | Banco Nacional de Fomento 
(BNF), of Paraguay

ALIDE | Banco Nacional de 

Curso online | 
por procesos en bancos e 

Online course | «Process Management 

The conceptual framework for process management, its 

for processes and its integration with the Basel 

pillars were established; the tools and techniques 

for identifying, preparing, analyzing, improving and 

implementing processes were taught, KPIs for process 

measurement and control were designed and its risk 

organization, operations, business, loans, guarantees, 

processes, planning, administration, auditing and 

quality management of Argentina, El Salvador, 

Guatemala, Honduras, Paraguay and Uruguay took the 

course.
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Workshop del Programa 
de Gobierno de Datos – 
GOBERDATA  | 

Taller Online In-House | 

Data Governance Program Workshop 

the BNF»

Online In-House Workshop | «Data Governance for the GOBERDATA stakeholders»

This workshop was held exclusively for persons 

data governance program and basic aspects to be 

considered for designing the data strategy in the 

respective working areas of the BNF. 

April 19 to May 12

ALIDE | Banco Nacional de 

ALIDE | Banco Nacional de Fomento 
(BNF), of Paraguay

ALIDE | 
ALIDE | Banco Nacional de Fomento (BNF), of Paraguay

Curso – Taller   
Presencial InHouse |  

| «Corporate Governance for Banks and 
Financial Institutions » 

Cusco, Peru, July 18 to 21 

The course was designed to give participants a full understanding of the concepts, 

corporate governance, by means of the study of a practical guide to the methodology.  There 

head of the compliance unit, the head of the supply unit, the managing director of the 

general management conglomerate, and a representative of the strategy and projects unit.   

ALIDE | Caja de ANDE de Costa Rica
ALIDE | Caja de ANDE, of Costa Rica

In order to help BNF executives in the business and IT areas create the necessary impetus 

executives, known as stakeholders, were given training in the meaning of data governance, 

Data, of themselves, are only the means to an end: larger enterprise returns.  As a result, 

the responsibility for data governance initiatives should rest with both the business and IT 

areas and, if possible, more with the former than the latter.  
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Taller online | 
del riesgo operacional en 

Online Workshop | «Operational risk 

ALIDE | CAF- Development Bank of 
Latin America

August 22 to September 2.

area of operations of Ecuador, Mexico, Paraguay, 

Peru, Uruguay and Venezuela--  the concepts 

concerning operational risks and to prepare models 

for their rating; also to measure the impact of the 

various methods used to calculate the capital 

needed to cover operational risks and their impacts 

through the presentation of real case studies and 

the discussion and exchange of experiences with the 

participants.  

ALIDE | CAF Banco de 
Desarrollo

Webinars

Webinarios

Webinar | 

May 3 
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has become a key element for covering the gap in needs that will allow for compliance with 

will become decisive for that purpose, particularly for the developing countries. Despite 

reaching its potential.  The following topics were addressed during the webinar:  

Latin American, Caribbean, and European countries and the United States.

Estado de 

sostenibles en 
ALC

Lo que 
Glasgow nos 
dejó

2022 en bonos 

State of 
sustainable 

What Glasgow 
left us 

Outlook for 
thematic bonds 
in 2022. 

a. b. c.

y Europa.

Caribbean and European countries shared the experiences of LAC countries with thematic 

bonds.  The principal characteristics of those bonds were studied, as were the possibilities 

for scaling up numbers and volumes in the region, and the barriers to, and opportunities for, 

Webinar  | «Bonos 

futuro» 
Webinar | «Thematic bonds in 
Latin America and the Caribbean: 
past, present and future» 

October 19 

Participation in Conventions 

Convenciones

ALIDE collaborated with Fedecrédito, the 

Federación de Cajas de Crédito y de Bancos de 

los Trabajadores, of El Salvador, by designating 

speakers and experts to participate in conventions 

organized by that institution.  
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to produce more growth and larger returns.

Delinquency management and strategies for loan portfolio and 

credit card recovery.

ALIDE participated by designating an expert who gave a talk on the subject of business 

Convención de gerentes generales del 
SISTEMA FEDECRÉDITO
17th Convention of FEDECRÉDITO SYSTEM general managers.

Buenos Aires, Argentina, June 13 to 15 

17ª 

ALIDE participated by providing an expert who gave two virtual talks on the following subjects:  

Convención de negocios del 
SISTEMA FEDECRÉDITO.

Mexico City, Mexico, April 21 and 22

16ª 

institutions. A total of 57 Fedecrédito staff members participated in 

the convention.

An ALIDE expert attended two in-person conferences where the following topics were addressed: 

del SISTEMA FEDECRÉDITO

Cartagena de Indias, Colombia, October 20 and 21 

17ª 

1. 1. 

2. 2. 
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Training and consultancy

Capacitación y 
consultoría

«Programa ANDE de Liderazgo Resiliente 

organizacional»
«ANDE Resilient Leadership Program (PLAR). Strengthening of organizational talent and 

productivity»

September 1, 2021 to March 30, 2022.

ALIDE | Caja de ANDE de Costa Rica. 

ALIDE | Caja de ANDE, of Costa Rica. 

be able to understand leadership status in Caja de ANDE. This was followed by the creation of 

receptiveness to change, during which workshops were held to imbue the organization with the 

importance of the PLAR and to develop the concept of resilient leadership, in an effort to convince 

the bosses and their collaborators of, and commit them to, the expected results of this program.   

stages were collected, in order to put the principles of leadership and teamwork into practice in 

each workshop area, similarly to the case of innovation laboratories.   

Ande, concluding with the action plan phase, where all of the information collected during the 

milestones of the exercise and future guidelines for action by Caja de ANDE.
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ALIDE | Banco Nacional de Fomento (BNF), of Paraguay      
The end purpose was to make a six-month diagnosis of Data Governance and, based on the results, to establish 

guidelines for, and actions to be taken by, the institution.  To that end, various tutorship services on Data 

Governance were provided to the Bank’s responsible team and documents were reviewed and reports containing 

in Asuncion, Paraguay. Different workshop sessions were held during the Workshop and afterwards the basic 

aspects were outlined in order to design the data strategy in the Bank’s respective areas of endeavor.   

IT executives create the necessary impetus the make data governance an all-enterprise cross-cutting priority.  The 

the results were presented, together with recommendations and the next steps to be taken, to the Technology 

Committee, Goberdata leaders and the work team. 

«Programa de Gobierno de Datos – Goberdata del Banco 

Knowledge management 

1.6  

Knowledge is an element that gives financial 

institutions the competitive edge.  Through its Latin 

American Documentation Center, ALIDE manages 

information on development finance produced over 

its more-than 55-year history.  
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The Banking Hub is a vehicle that collects and concentrates in a single 

institution areas of interest, particularly areas concerned with digital 

transformation, exchange of knowledge, Public-Private Partnerships, and 

investment in infrastructure, among other matters.  The Hub lodges the 

following platforms: 

a. Hub de Banca de Desarrollo
a. Development Banking Hub 

Digital Banking: 

Community of Development Banking Practice: 

Banca Digital: 

The platform consists of a self-diagnosis for ALIDE Member 

Public Development Banks, enabling them to determine the 

current state of digitalization of their processes and services 

and to detect gaps with a desired future scenario.  

: It aims to share knowledge, statistics, innovations, documents 

and events of the participating institutions and to make it 

possible to take part in discussion groups on topics of interest 

to Development Banking.  
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LATAM Projects: 

PPP Group: 

Grupo de APPs: 

Proyectos LATAM: 

Demonstrate the most important opportunities for investors, 

infrastructure and energy projects.

Initiative of ALIDE and the IDB with the end purpose of 

supporting the institutional strengthening of PDBs in 

diseñada como parte del proceso de modernización de los servicios de 

 

b. Databank
b. Databank

The Databank platform, designed as part of the process of modernization of the 

Documentation Center information services, facilitates access to the most voluminous 

source of information about Latin American and Caribbean Development Banking.  The 

platform offers to search for, and access, documentary information, as well as diverse 

specialized contents produced by ALIDE member institutions and related organizations 

through a free search method in the virtual library catalogue.   It also allows for access 

to ALIDE Databases of Development Banks, international organizations and institutions 
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Cifras de la biblioteca virtual 2022

8 562 documentos disponibles 

11000 visitas 

Los temas 
más solicitados fueron:

311 búsquedas 
a la plataforma 

registradas en el año.
de información 

realizadas en el año.
11000 visits to the 

platform recorded over 
the year.  

The most frequent subect searches 

311 information searches 
conducted over the year.

1 2 3 4 5
banca de indicadores agricultura.

were for 
development 

wholesale 
banking, 

sustainable 
indicators, and 

agriculture.  

Communication and dissemination of information

1.7  Comunicación y difusión 
de información

Digital communication is ALIDE’s primary 

transmitter of institutional information and 

messages.  These channels were reinforced with 

new graphic proposals and marketing tools.  Our 

100% digitalized media are disseminated through 

different social networks and mass mailings to 

member banks across the whole world and the 

Latin American press.   

8 562 documents available
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Institutional media

Banking and Development magazine

This magazine continued to serve as the principal medium for the dissemination of 

specialized contents about Development Banking through interviews, articles and 

analyses of trends and best practices.  Four annual editions are published in digital format.  

introduced in an institutional mail, enabling ALIDE members and the general public to 

become aware of the new editions.  Included among other contents were interviews with 

international consultants and articles written by experts of the member banks on topics 

Revista Banca & Desarrollo

 Con 

The bulletin kept its digital format and became a monthly publication.  Bearing a modern 

design and sent out over a new ALIDE platform for mass mailings, the bulletin contained 

information about the Association’s most important initiatives:  news, activities, 

publications, notices of meetings, and platforms, etc. It was sent to executives of member 

institutions and the public involved in ALIDE’s activities.  It is also available in the section 

on publications of our Home Page 

ALIDE News Bulletin
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The bulletin prioritized the dissemination of information about the member institutions: 

news, interviews, activities, publications, anniversaries and appointments of managerial 

staff.  In that way, E-Banca became a kind of monthly report about the actions of Latin 

American and Caribbean Development Banks.  It was distributed monthly through 

ALIDE’s mass messaging platform and is also to be found in the publications section of 

our Home Page 

E-Banking electronic Bulletin

Intended for executives of non-Spanish-speaking countries, the quarterly electronic 

bulletin distributed in English showcases a variety of information about ALIDE’s principal 

been created with a more modern format in line with the protocols for mass messaging.   It 

is distributed at the close of each quarter using digital channels, including our web (

E-News electronic Bulletin
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Our website was improved and updated, with a view towards updating security 

standards, navigation speed and compatibility with the new web tools.  In that way, we 

sought to facilitate and promote user navigation and upgrade the dissemination of ALIDE 

contents.  We also continued to periodically update different sections of the web, keeping 

all visitors informed. (https://www.alide.org.pe)

ALIDE website

 

For ALIDE, which, as an association, tends to bring out publications in coordination with the 

accounts of its member institutions, the social networks are an especially useful platform. 

This year, we continued to disseminate contents related to ALIDE, its member institutions 

and the Development Banking system, through the social networks, Facebook, Twitter, 

LinkedIn and Youtube. The Flickr account was also updated as a repository of ALIDE’s 

photos.    

Redes sociales
Social networks

facebook Linkediln Youtube
Facebook Twitter Linkedln Youtube
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b. Notas de prensa
Press releases 

ALIDE’s activities, publications and agreements on different aspects of development 

were issued in regard to ALIDE’s activities and its participation in virtual and in-person 

international events relating to Development Banking.  In addition, arrangements were 

made with the communication areas of member institutions, like BNF, Korpodeko, FIRA, 

BICE, the IDB and ECLAC, to coordinate images and information in the press releases.

12 113 subscribers on the electronic mailing lists.  

Alcance de medios digitales
Digital media coverage

12 113 suscriptores  

vídeos publicados fotos publicadas

Number of press releases: 

Number of followers in 2022: 

Number of followers in 2022: 

videos published

Number of followers in 2022: 

photos published

Number of visits: 

Number of followers in 2021

Number of followers in 2021: Number of followers in 2021: 

Comunicación digital
Digital communication

Página web

LinkedIn

Facebook 

Youtube Flickr

38

32 000

3 714

6 248 3 713

6 730

66 5 307

3 779

2004

Web page

LinkedIn

Facebook 

Youtube

Twitter 

Flickr
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Promovemos la 
Cooperación 

2

We Promote Cooperation 

We create links and cooperation in order to carry out activities, exchange 
experiences and engage in joint learning events, thereby favoring the 
establishment of synergies and broadening the scope of our actions.

CAPÍTULO
CHAPTER 
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Agreements and cooperation activities 

Active members 

2.1  
cooperación

The French Development Agency (AFD)
Agencia Francesa de Desarrollo

The activities being considered for performance 

with the Agency’s assistance are within the context 

of its mandate in the region, which is to support 

particularly climate aspects and the adjustment 

of the development banks to the Paris Climate 

Agreement, in keeping with the objective of coaching 

the ecological, territorial and energy transition in the 

region.  Trainings, regional exchanges of experiences 

and collaboration on studies and technical notes are 

foreseen in this framework.   Also, based on AFD’s 

IDFC Club chairmanship and its leadership of the 

Finance in Common initiative, collaboration on 

Banco de Inversión y Comercio Exterior (BICE) 

Banco de Inversión y Comercio 

joint events to support FICS thematic coalitions.  It 

was announced, as well, that Finance in Common 

will be held in LAC in 2023, organized by the Inter-

American Development Bank (IDB) and  Bancóldex 

of Colombia, with ALIDE’s support.  It was further 

agreed to make arrangements for a development 

2023, to the cities of Marseille and Paris, in order 

to share the experience of AFD and of French public 

sustainable and climate development.

The Argentinean bank, together with Banco Provincia de Buenos Aires (BAPRO) and 

ALIDE’s cooperation, organized the Third Roundtable of Chief Economists of Latin 

American Development Banks.  The meeting was held as a hybrid event and convened 

region.   
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Inter-American Development Bank (IDB)

Within the framework of their relationship as 

strategic allies, mutually acknowledged by the 

two institutions, this year they have renewed an 

abundant work agenda in different thematic areas, 

such as: gender and SME inclusion; PPP Group 

and development banking; digitalization; and 

green topics.  The activities in these areas consider: 

baseline studies/surveys; events for the exchange 

of experiences; webinars; workshops; diagnoses; 

hosting of software tools; and platform for exchanges 

and repository of information.   

The Development Banking Hub was prepared in 

collaboration with the IDB.  It consists of a vehicle 

that collects and concentrates in a single site  data 

and information for public use in different areas of 

interest to development institutions, particularly 

areas associated with digital transformation, 

exchange of knowledge, Public-Private partnerships, 

and investment in infrastructure, among others. 

Associate members

b. Miembros adherentes

KfW- German Development Bank 

European Investment Bank  (EIB)

KfW- Banco de Desarrollo Alemán

The German institution collaborated in ALIDE’s Work Program by co-organizing the 

transport,» where it shared its experience in promoting electric mobility in Germany and 

Latin American and Caribbean countries.   

desarrollar en los siguientes años con relación a 

This year, ALIDE has maintained a projected line of 

work together with the EIB, including activities to be 

carried out over the coming years in regard to topics 

like green hydrogen and digital bonds, among other 

things.  The Bank also participated by appointing 

experts to participate in the 52nd General Assembly, 

held in Curazao in May.  
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CAF- Development Bank of Latin America  

CAF- Banco de Desarrollo de 

In the framework of this collaboration, at the last 

General Assembly, held in Curazao, CAF launched 

an Initiative to create the Latin American and 

Caribbean Carbon Market.   The bank seeks to 

promote the global competitiveness of the supply of 

carbon credits produced in the region by reinforcing 

favorable conditions for future voluntary and 

regulated markets and extending its impact to 

encompass the creation of employment, income, 

new technologies, green business clusters and the 

dissemination of activities carried out under this 

initiative.  

Other institutions and international organizations

Economic Commission for Latin America and the Caribbean (ECLAC) 

Comisión Económica para América 

en la región.

The Development Banking Platform for Latin 

America and the Caribbean, which congregates 

the ALIDE-ECLAC Community of Practice and 

whose aim is the sharing of knowledge among 

as the promotion of good practices for the region’s 

sustainable development, was presented at ALIDE’s 

2022 General Assembly.   

ALIDE was actively involved in creating and 

including content in the Community platform, such 

as documents, databases, and events and, together 

with ECLAC, appointed moderators. 

Advances in digital technologies have an impact on the way development banks operate, 

transforming their relationships with customers, competitiveness, and data administration, 

among other aspects.  With the outbreak of the COVID-19 crisis, the implementation of 

these processes became a pressing issue that permits the continuity of service to, and 

support for, the production and social sectors to be guaranteed.  It was in this context that 

inclusion and development» for the second straight year.  Furthemore, Nausica Trias of AIS 

Spain, served as moderator at the session on “Agenda 2030: leadership, human talent and 
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Green Climate Fund (GCF) 

de los países.

(UNOPS), the manager of the funds. The proposal seeks to turn the individual efforts of 

and, in that way, 

to increase the number of institutions accredited to the GCF and projects in line with the 

countries’ climate policies and frameworks.

International Development Finance Club (IDFC)

ALIDE, as co-organizer of FiCS 2023, is supporting 

the Finance in Common initiative by participating 

on its steering committee and collaborating actively 

in its activities.  It also took part as a speaker on 

one of the panels at the Annual Meeting of FiCS 

and continues to provide support for the different 

thematic coalitions that emerged in order to involve 

the Latin American banks more fully.  

Red de Inversión y Financiación en favor 
de las Pymes Agrícolas y los Pequeños 

ALIDE is a member of the Steering Committee of the Smallholder and Agri-SME Finance 

small and medium enterprises in the agricultural value chains.  As such, it participated in 

the various forums and webinar on technical topics that were held over the year considered 

in the Network’s annual work plan.  SAFIN also held its annual meeting in the framework 

of the 7th World Congress on Rural and Agricultural Finance that took place in Morelia, 

México, in which ALIDE cooperated fully, together with FIRA, of Banco de México.

Renewables Academy (Renac)

ALIDE continued to collaborate with Renac in 

promoting the «Green Banking Program: Formation 

the Latin American and Caribbean region.» This is 

and to make use of internationally available climate 
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1

Activities: 

ALIDE participated in the Green Banking Delegation Tour of RENAC 

2022, an event held as part of the conclusion of the Green Banking 

Capacities.  Held in (Frankfurt and Berlin) Germany on September 

the transformation and use of funds stemming from investments 

Investitions- und Entwicklungsgesellschaft. Furthermore, details 

were supplied on the International Climate Protection Initiative 

Costa Rica, El Salvador, Guatemala, Honduras and Peru.

 

 2

ALIDE and Renewables Academy AG (RENAC) jointly organized 

the RENAC Alumni Conference,

in Lima, Peru.  Fellowship-holders of training courses offered in 

the framework of the Green Banking Program were assembled at 

the event for the purpose of analyzing and discussing new topics 

require reinforcement for consciousness raising and creation 

enterprises and individuals embarking on new projects. Nearly 

30 representatives of banks, cooperatives, municipal banks, 

investment funds, government ministries and the banking 

phase of the program in Latin America.    
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ALIDE- Green Climate Fund (GCF) Regional Readiness

2.2  Readiness Regional ALIDE- 

In response to the Association’s institutional record 

Republic, Guatemala, Paraguay and Uruguay, 

decided to collaborate with ALIDE in developing a 

US$ 1.2 million regional Readiness project proposal 

on Climate Financing for presentation to the Green 

Climate Fund (GCF). The project was launched in 

and by creating and placing particular instruments 

conducive to the mitigation of, and adaptation to, 

climate change.

Started in June 2021, the Project will come to an end 

in April of 2023 (https://www.readinessalide.com/).   

Its aim is to reinforce the processes undertaken 

by taking a regional approach that would identify 

business.  At the same time, successful experiences 

would be shared, as would impact monitoring and 

follow-up mechanisms, thereby facilitating the 

transition towards a new generation of innovative 

region, including development banks and private-

commercial ventures.   

Cuba, the Dominican Republic, Guatemala, 

Paraguay and Uruguay, including regulators 

(that is to say, central banks, banking supervisory 

organizations, etc.); the banking sector (commercial 

and national development banks); and the private 

sector (private sector institutions that deal with 

climate investments).   

The Project is producing evidence concerning the 

challenges to be faced and the opportunities that 

will arise for implementing innovative solutions for 

action: 
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 el cual realiza 

  como 

and social policies and safeguards in the Financial Institutions (FIs) of the 

participating countries, identifying the existing supply and demand, gaps, 

barriers and opportunities, with a proposal for categorization and relevant 

future prospects for updating and obtaining a more in-depth analysis of the 

2) Recommendations by country of potential Development Banks (DBs) as 

Accredited Entities before the GCF; as well as handbooks for the Environmental 

and Social Risk Management System (SARAS) and gender-orientation.   

Emphasizing support for the possible institutions with direct access, in order to 

assess their portfolio for climate change and compliance with the standards of 

the GCF accreditation process.  

Promoting joint investments and strategic alliances between Financial 

Institutions (FIs) and Accredited Entities (AEs), testing the relevance of special 

purpose vehicles, public-private partnerships (PPPs), green bonds and other 

scale in the region.

processes of the NDCs  (nationally determined contributions) and of the Paris 

Program by analyzing the situation and recommendations for prioritizing the 

portfolio on a regional/national scale, pilot experiences and presentation of 

concept notes to GCF.

Two regional reports are available at present on: 

delivering a portfolio of prioritized regional/

national investment projects in line with the 

GCF country programming of the participating 

countries; personalized trainings and work plans 
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Uruguay, Guatemala and the Dominican Republic; a 

regional analysis of the opportunities for, impact of 

and prospects for SPVs (Special Purpose Vehicles), 

Public-Private partnerships (PPPs) and green bonds 

that describes recommendations for improving 

and raising the scale of investment, emphasizing 

opportunities for promoting nature-based solutions 

in the context of climate action; the design of an 

investment on a Latin American scale; two concept 

will be presented to the GCF, giving priority to 

resilient green economic recovery options from 

the post-pandemic regional scenario; and the 

implementation of a regional (virtual and in-person) 

with emphasis on green business lines, gender-

oriented policies and environmental and social 

safeguards for the participating countries.  

  

Sureco & Partners, through the webinar «Introduction to the Green Climate 

Fund and accreditation process» that was held on June 28, made a presentation 

the Green Climate Fund (GCF) as a fund established to support climate action 

in developing countries. It was explained in that session that the GCF raises 

gas emissions, increase resilience to climate change and promote sustainable 

organizations seeking to accede to resources from the fund was also discussed.  

A series of requirements to be met in order for an organization to secure 

accreditation was indicated to be evaluating the capacity of an organization to 

implement projects for mitigation and adaptation to climate change effectively 

United States.  

1

Activities: 

Argentina, Cuba, the Dominican Republic, Guatemala, Paraguay and Uruguay.

“ “
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of Sureco & Partners developed 2 handbooks to facilitate accreditation for the 

Green Climate Fund (GCF) of potential entities: The Guide to Environmental 

and Social Safeguards and the Guide to Gender, which were presented at the 

webinar «Accreditation for the Green Climate Fund: Environmental, Social 

and Gender Safeguards,»

American, Caribbean and European countries and the United States.  These 

handbooks provide orientation to potential accredited entities on the GCF’s 

requirements and expectations in regard to the management of environmental 

and social impacts and the inclusion of gender issues in the projects.  In the 

workshop, as well, information about the requirements for accreditation to 

institutions for the GDF was reinforced.  This includes giving greater attention 

to risk management, transparency and accountability, as well as to the capacity 

2

Activities: 

Bilateral Business Meetings and Cooperation 

2.3  Entrevistas Bilaterales de 
Negocios y Cooperación  

The bilateral meetings were held during the 52nd 

Regular Meeting of the ALIDE General Assembly, in 

and took place parallel to the sessions held between 

May 17 and 20, 2022. 

This service offered by ALIDE gave the participating 

interest.  
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AIS, BAPRO, BDMG, BNCR, BNF, BROU, CABEI, CAF, Caja de Ande, Caja de Ahorros, 

CARIBANK, CARICOM, CDB, CDP, DID Desjardins, the EIB, EximBank India, Finagro, 

NABARD, S&P, and Sureco, among others. In addition, virtual meetings were organized 

between the following institutions: (1) Willis Towers Watson -CABEI, (2) FIRA-AIS, (3) 

136 entrevistas bilaterales, siendo 

concretadas 102 entrevistas presenciales 4 entrevistas virtuales, en total 

 No 

were held, 12 less than at the last Assembly that was organized fully in-person.  Even 

so, several meetings coordinated directly by participating institutions, like ICO, are not 

“ “ The matters dealt with at these meetings for 

programs for production development, support 

environmental projects, including carbon markets, 

digitalization processes, exchange of experiences or 

in-depth investigation into programs managed by 

areas like agriculture, foreign trade, SMEs, impact 

investment, and digital transformation process, 

among others.  

Likewise, there was a great deal of interest in 

collaboration and institutional cooperation 

agreements,  in addition to strengthening existing 

bilateral relations.  Advantage was also taken of the 

opportunity to promote training courses, technical 

assistance programs, forthcoming regional meetings, 

consultancy services regarding the incorporation of 

new disruptive technologies, and the provision of 
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Participation in international meetings and forums 

2.4  
foros internacionales 

General Bureau of Environmental Economy and 

Finance, Ministry of the Environment 

Virtual, January 24 – 26 

ALIDE high-level executives participated as 

attendees and speakers at international meetings 

MasterClass / MasterClass

The evolution of biodiversity impact measurement: Innovative tools and 
instruments  

La evolución de la medición de impacto para la biodiversidad: 
Herramientas e instrumentos innovadores

International Fund for Agricultural Development (IFAD)

Virtual, February 16 

United Nations 

/ Meeting

Reunión  / Meeting

“How can public capital help small businesses make food systems greener 

Preparations for the Regional Conference for Latin America and the Caribbean 

“How can public capital help small businesses make food systems 

promotional group for implementing Our 

Climate Challenge (GIP-NDC)

Virtual, January 27 

Webinar / Webinar 

“Knowing the private sector’s participation in 

United Nations Development Program (UNDP) / 

Ministry of Finance 

Virtual, January 26 

Webinar / Webinar 

“Climate Finance and its impact on decision-



ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2022

A
N
N
U
A
L R
E
P
O
R
T

M
E
M
O
R
IA
 A
N
U
A
L

2022
A

N
N

U
A

L R
E

P
O

R
T

M
E

M
O

R
IA

 A
N

U
A

L

MEMORIA ANUAL 2022

Food and Agriculture Organization of the United 

Nations (FAO) 

Virtual, February 25 

International Fund for Agricultural Development 

(IFAD)

Virtual, March 9 

Reunión  / Meeting

Webinar  / Webinar 

LARC37 Private Sector Consultation 

Preparations for the Regional Conference for Latin America and the Caribbean: How to 
support small businesses to make our food systems resilient to climate change?

Consulta Sector Privado LARC37

Caribe How to support small businesses to make our food systems 

Virtual, May 24 – 26 

Congreso / Congress

Organization for Economic Cooperation and 

Development (OECD) 

Virtual, May 6 

Reunión / Meeting 

2022 Friends of Foresight Annual Meeting

2022 Friends of Foresight Annual 
International Fund for Agricultural Development (IFAD)

Virtual, June 8

Business Development Bank of Canada (BDC)

Virtual, June 8

Reunión / Meeting

Webinar / Webinar 

Ukraine crisis & agri-food systems

Boost your performance with technology

Ukraine crisis & agrifood systems

Boost your performance with technology

Development Bank of Latin America / Spanish 

Ministry of Economic Affairs and Digital 

Transformation / Spanish Confederation of 

Business Organizations (CEOE) / Casa de 

América

Virtual, May 26

Reunión / Meeting

Ukraine crisis & agri-food systems

Ukraine crisis & agrifood systems

Development Bank of Latin America / Spanish 

Ministry of Economic Affairs and Digital 

Transformation / Spanish Confederation of 

Business Organizations (CEOE) / Casa de 

América

Virtual, May 26 

Conferencia CAF / CAF Conference  
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Caribbean Development Bank (CDB)

Virtual, June 1 - 16 

Organization for Economic Cooperation and 

Development (OECD) 

Virtual, June 14 and 15 

Reunión / Meeting

Reunión / Meeting

G20 Infrastructure Investors Dialogue: Leveraging Private Sector Participation in 
Sustainable Infrastructure Investment

G20 Infrastructure Investors Dialogue: Leveraging Private Sector 

International Fund for Agricultural Development (IFAD)

Virtual, June 21 

Reunión / Meeting

credit gap

Design clinic on combining 

credit gap

Water Finance Coalition

Virtual, June 21 

Reunión / Meeting

Global Fund for Cities Development / FMDV / 

AFD France 

Virtual, July 18 

International Fund for Agricultural Development 

(IFAD)/ Food and Agriculture Organization of the 

United Nations (FAO) 

Virtual, July 21 

Reunión / Meeting

Mesa Redonda  / Roundtable

“Discussing strategy, main objectives and upcoming activities of the New Coalition on Resilient Cities 

“Oportunidades para acelerar la digitalización del sector agropecuario en 

D20-LTIC / OECD / GIH / G20 Indonesian 

Presidency 

Bali, Indonesia, July 14 - 16 

(Virtual participation)

D20-LTIC SUMMIT 2022 & 2022 G20 

D20-LTIC SUMMIT 2022 & 2022 G20 | Infrastructure Investors Dialogue: Leveraging Private 
Sector Participation in Sustainable Infrastructure Investment

Infrastructure Investors Dialogue: Leveraging Private Sector 
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Alliance of Subnational Development Banks in 

Latin America and the Caribbean 

Sao Paulo, Brazil August 10 - 11 

Finance in Common (FiCS)

Abidjan, Ivory Coast,  October 19 - 20 

Foro / Forum

Finance in Common Summit 2022  / Finance in Common Summit 2022 

Annual Forum of the Alliance of Subnational Development Banks in LAC

Mesa Redonda  / Roundtable

 

Ministry of Economy of Chile 

Santiago, Chile, September 30 

Seminario Internacional  
International seminar 

“Development Banks: international experience 
and their relevance to the new government of 

“Bancos de desarrollo: 
experiencia internacional y 
su relevancia para el nuevo 

Alliance of Subnational Development Banks in 

Latin America and the Caribbean 

Santiago, Chile September 1- 2  

(Virtual participation)

Latin America and the Caribbean 

Foro / Forum

UNFCC 

Sharm el-Sheikh, Egypt, October 7-18 

COP 27 / COP 27

27th Conference of the Parties of the UNFCCC

of the UNFCCC

Euroamerica Foundation

Lima, Peru, October 20 and 21 

Peru-European Union. Sustainable investments 
for inclusive development 

Perú-Unión Europea. Inversiones 
sostenibles para un desarrollo 
inclusivo

IFC - Green Banking Academy for Latin America 

and the Caribbean, 

Virtual, October 23 

Webinar / Webinar 

Smallholder and Agri-SME Finance and 

Investment Network (SAFIN)

Virtual, November 21 and 22 

Reunión / Meeting

SAFIN Annual Plenary Meeting

noviembre

Washington DC, United States, November 15 and 16 

Conferencia / Conference

Evaluation in Development Banks: 
challenges and contributions 

Evaluación en Bancos de 
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CCFLA-CENDB-WFDFI

Virtual, December 1 

«Enhancing the Role of NDBs to Deliver Climate-Smart Urban Infrastructure Financing»

«Enhancing the Role of NDBs to Deliver Climate-Smart Urban 
Infrastructure Financing»

 

D20 LTIC 

Virtual, December 15 

D20-LTIC Sherpa Committee & OECD/D20LTIC 
Stakeholder engagement group

& OECD/D20LTIC Stakeholder 
engagement group

IFC - Green Banking Academy for Latin 

America and the Caribbean 

Virtual, December 15 

for the banking sector 

Ciudades Sostenibles: la 

para el sector bancario

Webinar / Webinar 

Webinar / Webinar Reunión / Meeting

 

Presentación de ponencias y 

Presentation of papers and participation in panel groups 

the Development Banking System,» presented at the Conference of the 

Pan American Federation of Consultants (FEPAC) «Future of Engineering 

Consultancy in the World.»
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«COFIDE and ALIDE Vision of the Role of Development Banks as Mobilizers 

of the Carbon Market,» presented at the CAF- Development Bank of Latin 

 Virtual, September 8.

«Role of the development banking system in support of innovation 

, presented at the Ministry of 

Economy, Promotion and Tourism’s International Seminar «Development 

Banks: International Experience and its Relevance for the New Chilean 

Government.»

 Santiago, Chile, September 30.

«G20 Infrastructure Investors Dialogue: Leveraging 

Private Sector Participation in Sustainable Infrastructure Investment», 

presented at the Conference «Infrastructure Investors Dialogue: Leveraging 

Private Sector Participation in Sustainable Infrastructure Investment», of 

D20-LTIC, OECD, GIH and G20 Indonesian Presidency.  

 Virtual, June 15 

«Financing a just and sustainable urban transition in LAC: the role of 

Subnational Development Banks», presented at the «Alliance of Subnational 

Development Banks in Latin America and the Caribbean- A Finance in 

Common Initiative - Annual Forum 2022».

 Sao Paulo, Brazil, August 10-11 
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 «The Role of Guarantee Systems as a Counter-Cyclical Instrument: A 

Development Banking Vision», presented at the XXV Ibero-American Forum 

on Guarantee Systems and Financing for SMEs.

 San Salvador, El Salvador, October 12-14.

«Fund-raising for Latin American and Caribbean industrial development: a 

look from the Development Banking system,» presented at the International 

Conference on «Challenges and Opportunities for Sustainable Development 

Goal SDG9 in Latin America and the Caribbean.»

 Panama City, Panama, October 18-20.

«Challenges for DFIs. Public and Private Sector Action to Combat Climate 

Change,» presented at Compañía Española de Financiación del Desarrollo’s 

«Climate Finance for Private Sector Development» during the Conference of 

 Sharm El Sheikh, Egypt, November 9 

«Fund-raising for the Industrial Development of Latin America and the 

Caribbean: A Look from the Development Banking System,» presented in 

the International Panel on «Export Production Finance,» of   the Association 

of Industrial Parks of Argentina (APIA).

 Buenos Aires, Argentina, December 15. 

«Current state of Sustainable Finance in Colombia and LAC,» presented at 

role of the banking system in the management of environmental, social and 

governance risks and their regulation.»

 Bogota, Colombia, October 27.
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Nuestra 

Our Institutional Structure 

que permite a nuestros asociados integrarse a las 

We promote the existence of a representative institutional structure that 

3
CAPÍTULO

CHAPTER 
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2022 General Assembly

3.1  Asamblea General 2022

The session on Institutional Affairs of the 52nd Meeting of the General Assembly was held 

on Friday, May 20 under the chairmanship of ALIDE President, Carlos Linares.  The General 

Assembly adopted the following agreements:

The Association’s appreciation of the member institutions, international organizations, agencies for 

cooperation and national institutions that provided support for, and collaboration in, the execution of 

ALIDE’s programs and activities in 2021 was attested to: 

The 2022-2023 ALIDE Work Program and Budget for 2022 were approved. 

ALIDE’s Annual Report and Financial Statements for 2021 were approved. 

a. 

d. 

b. 

c. 

Banco Regional de Desenvolvimento do Extremo Sul (BRDE), as an Active member

Instituto para el Desarrollo de Antioquía (IDEA), as an Active member

Aruban Investment Bank (AIB BANK NV), as an Active member
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 a las 

The ALIDE General Secretariat was instructed to continue consulting the member institutions 

about whether their countries would be interested in hosting the next meeting of the General 

Assembly in 2023.  

The participants heard the words of Juan Antonio Ketterer, head of the IDB’s Connectivity, 

Markets and Finance Division, about the continuous efforts of IDB-ALIDE; and of Alan 

Elizondo, Director General of FIRA-Banco de México, inviting them to take part in the 7th 

World Congress on Rural and Agricultural Finance, scheduled to take place this coming 

November 23-25, 2022 in Morelia, Michoacán, Mexico.

e. 

f. 

Banco de Inversión y Comercio Exterior (BICE), of Argentina; Banco do Nordeste (BNB), of 

Brazil; Banco de Desenvolvimento de Minas Gerais (BDMG), of Brazil; CAF-Development 

Bank of Latin America; the Economic Commission for Latin America and the Caribbean 

(CEPALC); Caja de ANDE, of Costa Rica; the European Investment Bank (EIB); the 

American Development Bank (IDB);  Banco Nacional de Fomento (BNF), of Paraguay; and  

“ “
Executive Committee

3.2  

Over the course of the year and despite the 

problems on the international scene, the Executive 

Committee was able to hold two virtual meetings, 

one on February 1 and the other on March 31; and 

two in-person meetings, on May 17 in Curazao and 

September 23 in Buenos Aires, respectively.  These 

function of leading and watching over the good 

performance of ALIDE’s activities.  At December 

of 2022 the Advisory Council was constituted as 

follows:  
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Corporación Financiera de 

Perú

México

Director Ejecutivo

Curazao

Chairman of the Board 

Corporación Financiera de 

Peru

Director General

Mexico

Executive Director 

Corporación de Desarrollo Sostenible 

de Curazao (Korpodeko)

Curazao

PRESIDENTE DE ALIDE
PRESIDENT OF ALIDE

Carlos Linares

Luis Antonio Ramírez Chesron D.A. Isidora

VICEPRESIDENTES
VICE-PRESIDENTS

Secretario general 

Perú

Uruguay

Secretary General 

Latin American Association of Development

Financing Institutions (ALIDE)

Peru

President

Banco de la Provincia de Buenos Aires 

(BAPRO)

Argentina

President

Banco de la República Oriental del 

Uruguay (BROU)

Uruguay

Edgardo Alvarez

Salvador Ferrer

DIRECTORES

SECRETARIO GENERAL

DIRECTORS

SECRETARY GENERAL
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Advisory Council

3.3  

The Advisory Council is an advisory body made up of past-Presidents of the Association 

and a very small number of eminent people who have been invited to serve on it.  It is 

constituted as follows:  

México

Brasil 

Past-President of ALIDE (2011 - 2013)

Ex Director General, Banco de Inversión y Comercio Exterior S.A.

Fideicomisos Instituidos en Relación con la Agricultura, FIRA-Banco 

de México

México

Past-President of ALIDE (2019)

Ex President, Banco Provincia de Buenos 

Aires (Bapro), Argentina

2019 

Past-President of ALIDE (2019)

Desenvolvimento de Minas Gerais 

(BDMG)

Brazil 

PRESIDENTE
CHAIRMAN

Rodrigo Sánchez Mújica 

Juan Ernesto Curutchet Marco Aurélio Crocco

CONSEJEROS
ADVISERS 
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Colombia

México

Ecuador

Past-President of ALIDE (2018-2019)

Ex Executive Vice-President, Banco de 

Inversión y Comercio Exterior (BICE)

Argentina

Past-President of ALIDE (2017)

Ex President, Financiera del Desarrollo 

(Findeter)

Colombia

Ex President, Banco de Inversión y 

Comercio Exterior S.A.

Argentina

Past-President of ALIDE (2017-2018)

Ex Director General, Nacional Financiera, 

Mexico

Ex Chair of the Board, Corporación 

Financiera Nacional B. P. (CFN)

Ecuador

Pablo García

Luis Fernando Arboleda

Mauro Alem

Jacques Rogozinski 
Schtulman

María Soledad Barrera

Uruguay

Ex President, Banco de la República Oriental 

del Uruguay (BROU)

Uruguay

Fernando Calloia

Brasil

México

 

Uruguay

Past-President of ALIDE (2009-2011)

Ex President, Banco do Nordeste do 

Brasil (BNB)

Brazil

Ex Director General, Nacional Financiera, 

Mexico

c/o President, Fundación Astur 

Uruguay

Roberto Smith

Mario Laborín Enrique V. Iglesias 

Costa Rica

Ex General Manager, Banco Nacional de Costa Rica

Costa Rica

William Hayden Quintero

El Salvador

Ex President, Banco Multisectorial de 

Inversiones (BMI)

El Salvador

Nicola Ernesto 
Angelucci
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México

Venezuela

Chile

Brasil

Past-President of ALIDE (2000)

Ex Director General, Nacional Financiera, 

Mexico

Past-President of ALIDE (1997-1999)

Ex President, Fondo de Crédito 

Agropecuario

Venezuela

Past-President of ALIDE (2000-2003)

Ex Executive Vice-President, Corporación 

de Fomento de la Producción (Corfo)

Chile

Ex President, Banco de Desenvolvimento 

de Minas Gerais (BDMG)

Brazil

Gonzalo Rivas Gómez

Marcos Raymundo 
Pessoa

Brasil

Ex President, Banco de Desenvolvimento de Minas Gerais (BDMG)

Brazil

Hindemburgo Pereira-Diniz

México

República Dominicana

Venezuela

Desarrollo

Desarrollo

Ex Director General, Nacional Financiera, 

Mexico

Past-President of ALIDE (1989-1990)

Ex Executive Vice-President, Banco de 

Desarrollo Nacional

The Dominican Republic

Past-President of ALIDE (1981-1983)

Ex President, Sociedad Financiera 

Mercantil y Agrícola

Venezuela

Colombia

Past-President of ALIDE (1990-1992)

Ex President, Banco Ganadero

Colombia

Past-President of ALIDE (1988-1989)

Ex President, Banco Nacional de 

Desarrollo

Argentina

Ex General Manager, Corporación 

Costarricense de Financiamiento Industrial

Costa Rica

Óscar Espinosa 
Villarreal

Frederich E. Bergés

Adolfo Nass

Jesús E. Villamizar 
Angulo

Ricardo Avellaneda

Ernesto Rohrmoser 
García
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New members

3.4  Nuevos miembros

In 2022, the following institutions jointed ALIDE 

members:

Desenvolve SP – Agencia

Aruban Investment Bank 
como

miembro Activo

como miembro Activo

Aruban Investment Bank (AIB BANK NV), as 

an Active member

Instituto para el Desarrollo de Antioquía 

(IDEA), as an Active member

Corporacion Nacional 
de Finanzas Populares y 

como
miembro activo

Corporacion Nacional de Finanzas Populares y 

Solidarias (CONAFIPS), as an Active member

CARICOM Development 
como miembro como miembro

CARICOM Development Fund (CDF), as an 

Associate member
UNEP Finance Initiative (UNEP FI), as an 

Associate member
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Member institutions

3.5  

and 8 collaborating members from 23 Latin American and Caribbean countries and seven 

extra-regional countries:  Canada, France, Germany, India, Portugal, Russia, and Spain.

Active members

Banco de la Nación Argentina

Belice

Bolivia

Aruba
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Banco Nacional de Desenvolvimento 

Gerais S.A. (BDMG)

Econômico e Social (BNDES)

(Bancóldex)

Agropecuario (Finagro)

(IDEA)

Brasil

Colombia

(BPDC)

Costa Rica

(Korpodeko)

Producción (Corfo)

Agropecuario (Indap)

(BDE)

Seguridad Social (Biess)

(CFN)

Populares y Solidarias (CONAFIPS)

Cuba

Curazao

Chile

Ecuador
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Banco de Desarrollo de El Salvador 

Banco Nacional de Desarrollo Agrícola 

(Bandesal)

Bancos de los Trabajadores (Fedecrédito)

(Banadesa)

Vivienda (Banhprovi)

El Salvador

Guatemala

Honduras

Banco del Bienestar

S.N.C. (Bancomext)

Públicos S.N.C.(Banobras)

Agropecuario, Rural, Forestal y Pesquero 

(FND)

México

Nicaragua

Panamá

Paraguay
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Banco de la Nación

Dominicana (Bagrícola)

Dominicana (BR)

(Bandex)

Uruguay (BROU)

Venezuela (Bandes)

Recíprocas para la Mediana y Pequeña 

Industria S.A. (Sogampi)

Perú

República Dominicana / The Dominican Republic

Uruguay

Venezuela

II. Miembros adherentes
Associate members 

 

 

Canada.

(CABEI)

Programme 
Finance Initiative
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III. Miembros colaboradores
Collaborating members 

Recíproca, Argentina

Ecuador

Pension Fund Administrators (AFP), Peru

Institutions (Sudeban), Venezuela

Institutional arrangements

3.6  

In order to expand and diversify ALIDE’s activities, 

as well as to maintain close relations with member 

2022 the General Secretariat made arrangements 

for work missions and in-person and virtual 

meetings with member institutions, international 

organizations and institutions associated with the 

Association’s affairs.  
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ENERO

FEBRERO

JANUARY

FEBRUARY

Bancomext, arranged for a virtual meeting to 

introduce Luis Antonio Ramírez, the institution’s 

Director General.  Edgar Alvarez, ALIDE Secretary 

General, and Romy Calderón, Head of the 

Economic Studies Program, participated in that 

meeting.  

Edgardo Alvarez, Secretary General of ALIDE, 

Eduardo Vásquez and Andrea Sánchez, Head and 

executive of the Institutional Relations Program, 

respectively, took part in a virtual coordination 

meeting with Enrico Petrocelli, Secretary General 

of D20-LTIC, to present the Club’s work program 

and exchange ideas about the activities to be 

carried out in 2022.  

Eduardo Vásquez and Andrea Sánchez, Head 

and executive of ALIDE’s Institutional Relations 

Program, respectively, met with Lilian Real 

Pinheiro, Governance Manager of Desenvolve 

SP, Brazil, to present ALIDE and establish closer 

relations between the two institutions.  

Edgardo Alvarez, ALIDE Secretary General, Romy 

Calderón, Head of its Economic Studies Program, 

and Marlene Zamora, Conference Head, held a 

virtual meeting with Libertad Sobrado, Emilie 

the Global Fund for Cities Development (FMDV), 

banco.

to discuss the SDB Alliance plan of action for 

2022-2023.

Carlos Linares, ALIDE President, and Edgardo 

Alvarez, its Secretary General, had a meeting 

with  Sergio Díaz-Granados, Executive President 

of CAF-Development Bank of Latin America; 

Christián Asinelli, CAF Corporate Vice-President 

for Strategic Programming, Lina Mondagrón, 

Malaret, CAF Representative in Peru, to consider 

reinforcing the collaboration between CAF and 

institutions (DFIs) of Latin America, which 

channel resources to key economic, social and 

environmental sectors in our region. 

Edgardo Alvarez, the Secretary General, and the 

Program Heads of ALIDE, met with Enrique Nieto 

and Vanina Messere of the IDB, to coordinate the 

IDB-ALIDE cooperation program for 2022.   

Jorge Montesinos, Head of the Training and 

Technical Cooperation Program and Eduardo 

Vásquez and Andrea Sánchez, Head and 

executive of the Institutional Relations Program, 

respectively, held a virtual meeting with   Ajay 

Rana, Eximbank India’ s representative in the 

United States, to discuss institutional issues in 

regard to the relationship between ALIDE and the 

bank. 

Edgardo Alvarez, Secretary General; Romy 

Calderón, Head of the Economic Studies Program; 

Eduardo Vásquez and Andrea Sánchez, Head and 

executive of the Institutional Relations Program, 

respectively, met with Jorge Arbache, Private 

Sector Vice-President, and Gladis Genua of the 
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CAF in order to coordinate initiatives for joint 

cooperation.   

Edgardo Alvarez, Secretary General, held a virtual 

meeting with Cyril A. Okoye, former Secretary 

General of the WFDFI and Secretary General 

of AADFI, to deal with matters concerning the 

Presidency and Secretary Generalship of the 

WFDFI occupied by ALIDE.  

During her mission to Lima, Peru, Marie-Pierre 

Bourzai, Director for Latin America of the AFD; 

Nicolas Fornage, AFD Regional Director for the 

Andean countries; and the top executives of 

the AFD in Lima visited the General Secretariat 

of ALIDE and met with Edgardo Alvarez and 

high-ranking executives of ALIDE to strengthen 

cooperation links between the two institutions.

Edgardo Alvarez, Secretary General, and Romy 

Calderón, Head of the Economic Studies Program, 

met virtually with Frank Rubio and Lea Marhic, 

activities concerning SAFIN.  

Edgardo Alvarez, Secretary General, and Romy 

Calderón, Head of the Economic Studies Program, 

held a virtual meeting with Leonardo Delbis de 

Lacerda, BDMG Financial Superintendent, for the 

purpose of strengthening institutional relations.  

MARZO
MARCH

ABRIL

MAYO

APRIL

MAY

Eduardo Vásquez and Andrea Sánchez, Head and 

executive of the Institutional Relations Program, 

met virtually with Ferruccio Santetti and Valeria 

Green Growth Institute (GGGI), in order to 

explore opportunities for collaboration for the 

region’s advancement.  

Andrea Sánchez, executive of the Institutional 

Relations Program, held a virtual meeting with 

Business Manager of Banco Popular y Desarrollo 

Comunal de Costa Rica, to deal with the relations 

between the two institutions and activities of 

interest to the bank for 2022.

With a view to strengthening institutional links, 

agreeing upon activities and moving ahead 

with negotiations, Edgardo Alvarez, Secretary 

General, and high-level executives of ALIDE met 

during the General Assembly with Javier Díaz 

Fajardo, President, and María José Naranjo, Vice-

President for Corporate Strategy of Bancoldex; 

Meghana Vasudev Joglekar, General Manager, 

and Varun Talwar, Chief Manager of the Export-

Import Bank of India (Exim Bank); Ruggero 



ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2022

A
N
N
U
A
L R
E
P
O
R
T

M
E
M
O
R
IA
 A
N
U
A
L

2022
A

N
N

U
A

L R
E

P
O

R
T

M
E

M
O

R
IA

 A
N

U
A

L

MEMORIA ANUAL 2022

Pietrafesa, Head of Corporate & Financial 

Institutions Development Finance, and Davide 

Prestiti; Claudia Arce, Director for Latin America, 

and Johannes Scholl, Division chief of KfW 

Vice-President, and Lorena Sanchez Campanella, 

Manager of Economic Advisory Service of Banco 

de la República Oriental del Uruguay (BROU); 

Higynus León, President of the Caribbean 

Development Bank (CDB); Gerardo Almager, CEO 

of Developpement International Desjardins; and 

Jorge Arbache, Private Sector Vice-President, and 

Gloria Gamero, Director of CAF- Development 

Bank of Latin America.

In the framework of the ALIDE General Assembly, 

Eduardo Vásquez, Head of the Institutional 

Relations Program, met with Alex Moreira, 

Director General of International Financial 

Consulting LTD (IFCL), to explore possibilities 

for cooperation between the two institutions, 

especially in regard to training.  

coordinaciones sobre una membresía cruzada 

desarrollo de la región.

Eduardo Vásquez, Marlene Zamora and Andrea 

Sánchez, Head and executives of the Institutional 

Relations Program, held a meeting with Johan 

Lopez, Coordinator for Latin America of UNEP FI, 

in order to continue coordinating arrangements 

concerning a cross membership between the two 

institutions and the work strategy that UNEP FI is 

implementing in favor of the region’s public and 

national development banks.  

JULIO
JULY

AGOSTO

SEPTIEMBRE

AUGUST

SEPTEMBER

Edgardo Alvarez, Secretary General, visited the 

headquarters of Desenvolve SP and met with 

of the Brazilian organization.

Eduardo Vásquez, Marlene Zamora and Andrea 

Sánchez, Head and executives of the Institutional 

Relations Program, met with Wilson Ordoñez, 

COFIDE Cultural and Knowledge Management 

executive, in order to coordinate the possibility of 

holding a joint forum on female leadership.

Santiago Rojas, CAF Representative in Peru, 

visited the institutional headquarters of the 

Association and met with its Secretary General,  

Edgardo Alvarez, and the Heads of ALIDE’s 

out by the institution and its cooperation.   

High-level ALIDE executives met virtually with 

Daniel Higa, Vice-President of Banco Formosa 

de Argentina to discuss the work ALIDE does and 

the lines of action it carries out, as well as the 

activities it performed over the year.  
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Financiera.

Edgardo Alvarez, Secretary General, met in 

Argentina with Juan Cuattromo, ALIDE Director 

and President of Bapro; Silvina Batakis, President 

of Banco de la Nación Argentina; Verónica 

Wejchenberg, President of Fogaba; and Juan 

Francisco Rodríguez, Deputy Business Manager 

of Banco Popular de Costa Rica. The Secretary 

General, Edgardo Alvarez, and Carlos Linares, 

ALIDE President, also had a meeting with Mariano 

de Miguel, President, and Eduardo Prina, General 

Manager of Banco BICE.

Eduardo Vásquez, Marlene Zamora and Andrea 

Sánchez, Head and executives of the Institutional 

Relations Program, met with Rossana Polastri, 

IFAD Regional Director, to discuss the link 

that exists between the two institutions and 

coordinate IFAD’s participation in the 7th World 

Congress on Agricultural Finance.  

In order to establish closer institutional links, 

Edgardo Alvarez, Secretary General, met at 

the headquaters of the Ministry of Economy, 

Development and Tourism of Chile with Fernando 

Cortés, adviser, and Beatriz von Loebenstein, 

Coordinator of the Ministry of Economy’s 

Development Finance System; and Francisco 

Meneses, Head of the Investment and Finance 

Management division, and Manuel Martínez, 

from Corfo’s Investment and Finance Manager’s 

of the Financial Assistance Division, at the 

headquarters of the Instituto de Desarrollo 

Agropecuario (Indap).

OCTUBRE
OCTOBER

Eduardo Vásquez and Andrea Sánchez, Head and 

executive of the Institutional Relations Program; 

and Nataly Lago, executive of the Economic 

Studies Program, attended a meeting with 

and Supervision in order to discuss strategic 

issues related to the expansion of the network 

of evaluation units (ReDeCA) for Latin American 

development banks.  

High-ranking executives of ALIDE were visited 

by Gabriel González, President of Garantizar y 

Casfog, Pablo Perazzo, Titular Trustee Auditor 

of Garantizar, and Francisco Martinotti, 

President of Fogapi. They discussed, among 

other issues, Garantizar’s activities with regard 

to avals, support for SMEs and possible areas 

for collaboration between our Association and 

Garantizar. In particular, they received a kind 

offer from the President of Garantizar to organize 

an in-service training event jointly with ALIDE on 

2023.  

Edgardo Alvarez, Secretary General, visited 

institutions in Madrid to discuss matters of 

institutional interest, meeting with  Pablo 

Pombo, President of Sociedad Anónima Estatal 

de Caución Agraria (Saeca);  Antonio Bandrés, 

ALIDE National Coordinator and Head of the 

International Relations area of Instituto de Crédito 



ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2022

A
N
N
U
A
L R
E
P
O
R
T

M
E
M
O
R
IA
 A
N
U
A
L

2022
A

N
N

U
A

L R
E

P
O

R
T

M
E

M
O

R
IA

 A
N

U
A

L

MEMORIA ANUAL 2022

Con ocasión de la Tercera edición de la 

President, and Raúl Moreno, Deputy Director of 

de Financiación del Desarrollo (COFIDES).

On the occasion of the Third Finance in Common 

2022 Summit (FICS) in Abidjan, Edgardo Alvarez, 

Secretary general, met with Cyril A. Okoye, AADFI 

Secretary General; Laurent Biddiscombe, AFD 

Deputy Executive Director of Operations; Eva 

Gutierrez, Lead World Bank Financial Economist 

of the Latin American and Caribbean Region; 

Kristin Lang, Head of the EIB’s Division for Latin 

America and the Caribbean; Gene Leon, President 

of the Caribbean Development Bank; Enrico 

Petrocelli, Head of International Institutional 

Relations, and Antonella Baldino, Head of 

International Cooperation and Development 

Finance of Cassa Depositi e Prestiti (CDP); Alvaro 

Lario, President of IFAD, Thouraya Triki, Director 

of the IFAD Sustainable Production, Markets 

and Institutions Division; Christian Fusillier, 

Lead Global Technical Advisor of IFAD; Valerie 

Schmitt, Deputy Director of the International 

Labour Organization’s (ILO) Social Protection 

Administrator of the Employment Department 

of the ILO; Laura Sabogal, Policy Advisor of 

Public Banks and MDBs of Third Generation 

Environmentalism - E3G; and Thomas Marois, 

Reader of the Department of SOAS Development 

Studies, of the University of London.

Romy Calderón, Head of the Economic Studies 

Program, and Jorge Montesinos, Head of the 

Training and Technical Cooperation Program, 

met in-person in El Salvador with Mario Salazar, 

President; Lil Maravilla, Administrative and 

Finance Director; and Claudia Guzmán, Human 

Resources Director of Bandesal, as part of the 

strategy of rapprochement with the member 

institutions

Romy Calderón, Head of the Economic Studies 

Program, and Jorge Montesinos, Head of the 

Training and Technical Cooperation Program, met 

in-person in El Salvador with Raúl Cienfuegos, 

Finance Director of Banco Hipotecario de El 

Salvador, as part of the strategy of rapprochement 

with the member institutions.  

Romy Calderón, Head of the Economic Studies 

Program, and Jorge Montesinos, Head of the 

Training and Technical Cooperation Program, met 

in-person in El Salvador with Armando Rosales, 

President; Karla Granados, Head of the Business 

School; Oscar Ruano, Business Manager; Miguel 

López, Technology Manager; and Alex Mónico, 

Financial Manager of Fedecrédito, as part of the 

strategy of rapprochement with the member 

institutions.

Romy Calderón, Head of the Economic Studies 

Program, and Jorge Montesinos, Head of the 

Training and Cooperation Program, met in-

person in El Salvador with Rodrigo Solórzano 

Arévalo, Vice-President; Nelson Rivas, General 

Manager; and Diego Gómez, Fund Management 

and Cooperation Manager of Banco de Fomento 

Agropecuario (BFA), as part of the strategy of 

rapprochement with the member institutions.

Romy Calderón, Head of the Economic Studies 

Program, and Jorge Montesinos, Head of the 

Training and Technical Cooperation Program, 

met in-person in Panama with Pedro Escalona, 

Deputy Manager of the Control and Follow-up 
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area; Alex Lindo, Deputy Manager of the Business 

area; and Elyonor Samudio, Executive Manager 

of Corporate Governance of Caja de Ahorros 

de Panamá, in order to learn closely about its 

activities, challenges and prospects. 

Romy Calderón, Head of the Economic Studies 

Program, and Jorge Montesinos, Head of the 

Training and Technical Cooperation Program, 

met in-person in Panama with Marcio E. Goti A., 

Executive Manager of Financial Institutions and 

Project Finance; and José Alberto Lau, Executive 

Deputy Manager of the Executive Management 

Finance of Banco Nacional de Panamá (BNP), 

in order to learn closely about its activities, 

challenges and prospects.  

Romy Calderón, Head of the Economic Studies 

Program, and Jorge Montesinos, Head of the 

Training and Technical Cooperation Program, met 

in-person in Panama with Gean Marc Córdoba, 

General Manager of Banco Hipotecario Nacional 

(BHN), to learn closely about its activities, 

challenges and prospects.  

Romy Calderón, Head of the Economic Studies 

Program, met in-person in Panama with Engineer 

Cecilio Ricord, General Manager of Banco de 

Desarrollo Agropecuario (BDA), to learn closely 

about its activities, challenges and prospects.

NOVIEMBRE

DICIEMBRE 

NOVEMBER

DECEMBER

rurales.

During the 27th Conference of the Parties to 

the United Nations Framework Convention on 

Egypt, Edgardo Alvarez, Secretary General, met 

with Daniel Fernando Fonseca, from the IDB.

Eduardo Vásquez, Andrea Sánchez, and Marlene 

Zamora, Head and executives of the Institutional 

Relations Program, met with José Sermeño and 

Gabriela Chinchilla, members of the Deputy 

Business Management Division of Banhprovi, in 

order to establish the initial coordination for the 

2023 ALIDE Assembly.  

Eduardo Vásquez and Andrea Sánchez, Head 

and executive of the Institutional Relations 

Program; Romy Calderón, Head of the Economic 

Studies Program, and his team, met with Rossana 

Polastri, IFAD Regional Director, to examine more 

fully the opportunities for collaboration on rural 
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Nuestras Finanzas 
2022

4
CAPÍTULO

OUR FINANCES IN 2022

que permite a nuestros asociados integrarse a las 

We promote a representative institutional structure, which allows our 

community.
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ASOCIACIÓN LATINOAMERICANA DE 
INSTITUCIONES FINANCIERAS PARA 

EL DESARROLLO - ALIDE

LATIN AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF DEVELOPMENT 

FINANCING INSTITUTIONS ALIDE

CONTENTS

CONTENIDO

ESTADOS FINANCIEROS AUDITADOS

Audited Financial Statements at December 31, 2022

US$ dólares americanos 
US$ United States dollars

DICTAMEN DE LOS AUDITORES 
INDEPENDIENTES
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

ESTADOS FINANCIEROS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTAS A LOS ESTADOS 
FINANCIEROS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Estado de situación financiera.
Statement of financial position

Estado de ingresos y gastos.
Statement of income and expenses

Estado de flujos de efectivo
Statement of cash flows

AL 31 DE DICIEMBRE DE 2022
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DICTAMEN DE LOS AUDITORES 
INDEPENDIENTES

To the Executive Committee of the Latin American Association of Development Financing Institutions -  ALIDE  

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Latin American Association 

of Development Financing Institutions – ALIDE,

position at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the resulting statements of comprehensive 

The General Secretariat is responsible for the 

reasonable preparation and presentation of the 

financial statements in conformity with generally 

accepted accounting principles and for internal 

control over financial reporting, if deemed necessary 

Responsabilidad del Auditor
Responsibility of the Auditor

in the judgment of the General Secretariat, to 

permit preparation of financial statements free 

from material misstatements, whether due to error 

or fraud.     

Our responsibility is to express an opinion about 

those financial statements based on our audit.  

We conducted our audit in conformity with 

international auditing standards.  Those standards 

demand compliance with ethical requirements and 

our planning and performance of  the audit with a 

reasonable assurance that the financial statements 

are free from material misstatements.  

An audit requires performing procedures regarding 

evidence for examining the amounts and disclosures 

in the financial statements. The selected procedures 

depend on the opinion of the auditors, and can 

include assessing the risk of material misstatement 

of the financial statements, whether due to 

error or fraud. In assessing the risk of material 

misstatement, the auditors deem internal control 

to be relevant for the reasonable preparation and 

presentation of the financial statements by the 

Association in order to design auditing procedures 

that will be appropriate to the circumstances, but 

not with the aim of expressing an opinion about 

the efficacy of the Association’s internal control. 

An Audit also includes evaluating the accounting 

principles used and significant estimates made by 

the General Secretariat, as well as evaluating the 

overall presentation of the financial statements.
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Authorized by:

IBAZETA PULIDO ZAGAL Y ASOCIADOS S.
CIVIL DE R.L.

We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

the bases for our audit opinion.

Opinión
Opinion

la 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial 

statements present reasonably in all material 

aspects, the financial position of the Latin American 

Association of Development Financing Institutions 

results of its financial operations and its cash flows 

for the years ended on those dates, in conformity 

with generally accepted accounting principles.  

Lima, Perú

March 28, 2023

Financieras para el 
Desarrollo - ALIDE
LATIN AMERICAN ASOCIACION OF DEVELOPMENT 
FINANCING INSTITUTIONS - ALIDE 



ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2022

A
N
N
U
A
L R
E
P
O
R
T

M
E
M
O
R
IA
 A
N
U
A
L

2022
A

N
N

U
A

L R
E

P
O

R
T

M
E

M
O

R
IA

 A
N

U
A

L

MEMORIA ANUAL 2022

  

  

TOTAL ACTIVO CORRIENTE

TOTAL ACTIVO NO CORRIENTE

TOTAL ACTIVO NO CORRIENTE

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3)

Fixed assets, net (Note 5)

Miscellaneous accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

TOTAL  CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS

ASSETS
At  December 31:

2022

US$ US$

996,836

1,833,073

2,829,909

867,436

1,855,971

2,723,407

TOTAL PASIVO CORRIENTE

TOTAL PASIVO

TOTAL PATRIMONIO

TOTAL PASIVO Y PATRIMONIO

Other accounts payable

Accrued equity

Deferred losses

Severance pay (Note 7)

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

Total liabilities

Total equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY (Note 8)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
At December 31:

2022

US$ US$

417,478

436,278

2,393,631

2,829,909

329,379

340,079

2,383,328

2,723,407

ESTADO DE SITUACIÓN FINANCIERA 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(IN UNITED STATES DOLLARS)

(Notes 1 and 2)
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Personal

TOTAL INGRESOS

TOTAL GASTOS

Regular membership fees

Personnel

Write-offs of bad debts

Financial expenses

Administrative

TOTAL INCOME

TOTAL EXPENSES

OPERATING SURPLUS

OTHER EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME

OPERATING EXPENSES

ACTIVO
For the years ended on December 31:

2022

US$ US$

1,011,800 954,739

ESTADOS DE INGRESOS Y GASTOS 
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENSES

ESTADOS DE FLUJOS DE EFECTIVO 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Surplus

Severance pay

Member accounts receivable

Miscellaneous accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Provision for severance pay 

Other accounts payable

Cooperation Agreement funds  

Deferred gains

Net changes in assets and liabilities:

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

or from the operating activities:

For the years ended on December 31:

2022

US$ US$

144,027 29,677

 (IN UNITED STATES DOLLARS)  (IN UNITED STATES DOLLARS)

(Notes 1 and 2) (Notes 1 and 2)
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Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Balance of cash and cash equivalents, at the 

Balance of cash and cash equivalents, at the 

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES 

126,872

983,912 700,343 NOTAS A LOS ESTADOSFINANCIEROS 
AL 31 DE DICIEMBRE DE 2022
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

ASOCIACIÓN LATINOAMERICANA DE INSTITUCIONES FINANCIERAS PARA EL DESARROLLO - ALIDE
ASOCIACIÓN LATINOAMERICANA DE INSTITUCIONES FINANCIERAS PARA EL DESARROLLO - ALIDE

ACTIVIDAD

The Latin American Association of Development Financing Institutions ALIDE (hereinafter 

known as the Association), is the international organization representing the development 

banks of Latin America and the Caribbean.  It is a legally constituted entity with its own 

juridical status that is governed by its bylaws and such rules and regulations as its governing 

bodies may establish.   

1
INSTITUTIONAL ACTIVITY

2022
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The Association is a non-profit institution with 

permanent headquarters located in the city of Lima, 

the purpose of  fostering cooperation among its 

members, establishing a two-way flow of information 

and promoting the preparation of studies on 

problems of common interest as a contribution to 

Latin American integration.    To fulfill its aims, the 

Association enjoys the recognition, privileges and 

immunity accorded to international organizations.   

Its activities, goods, funds, and operations are fully 

tax-exempt and it is free from any obligation to 

collect taxes, payments or liens of any kind.  

Visión / Vision

To serve as spokesman for the development banking system before countries 

and governments, civil society and international organizations.  Also to be 

the principal  facilitator of information services, innovative experiences and 

state-of-the-art training;  coordinator of business operations and of joint 

of their mission by the ALIDE members and the Association itself.  

Preparation of the financial statements requires the 

Administration and Financial Control Program to 

make estimates that affect the reported amounts 

of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent 

assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 

statements, and reported amounts of income and 

expenses during the financial year.

The following criteria were used to make the 

estimates and the most important accounting 

principles and practices below were applied to 

record the operations and to prepare the financial 

statements:  

Misión / Mission 

Based on the needs of the member institutions, to encourage them to share 

information about products and services and best practices, contribute to 

the training and technical assistance of their membership, and promote 

their contribution to the region’s economic and social development, and 

PRINCIPIOS Y/O    
PRÁCTICAS DE CONTABILIDAD2
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND/OR PRACTICES
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Financial statements are prepared and presented in conformity with Generally 

Accepted Accounting Principles in Peru (GAAP in Peru), encompassing: (a) the 

standards and interpretations issued or adopted by the International Accounting 

Standards Board (IASB), which include the International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS), the International Accounting Standards (IAS), and interpretations 

issued by the International Financial Reporting Standards Committee (IFRIC) or by 

the prior Standard Interpretation Committee (SIC) and subsequently adopted by 

(ASC) for application in Peru.  

Association complied with the IASs and IFRSs applicable to it, in conformity with 

the Resolutions issued by the Accounting Standards Council .

2.1  Base de preparación de los 

The Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 

require that the General Secretariat, in presenting 

its financial statements, must make estimates that 

affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 

on the date of the financial statements, and of the 

reported amount of income and expenses during 

the current period. Significant estimates include 

provision for depreciation of real estate, machinery 

and equipment.  Although management estimates 

on an ongoing basis, actual results may differ from 

those estimates.  

Functional currency

Use of estimates

2.2  Moneda Funcional

2.3  
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Financial Instruments 

assets and liabilities:  cash, membership accounts receivable and other accounts 

payable. The accounting policies used for their recognition and measurement are 

described in the corresponding notes on accounting policies.  

in conformity with the essence of the contractual agreement creating it.  Interest 

liability are debited as an expense or credited as income.  Distributions to holders 

retained earnings.  

2.4  Instrumentos Financieros

corresponding obligation becomes due.

The value of the land and building are reported 

at cost plus readjustments effected on the basis 

of appraisals made by independent experts, 

recorded on December 30,  1980, 1995 and 2001. 

Remaining assets are entered at their purchase 

price.  

Depreciation of fixed assets is calculated using the 

straight line method, according to the estimated 

service life of the respective asset.   Depreciation 

rates of 1%; 25% and 20% have been applied to the 

building, furniture and fittings and fixtures, and 

computer equipment, respectively.

Prepaid expenses

2.5  

2.6  Inmueble, maquinaria y 
equipo  
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Maintenance and repair expenses are debited 

as expenses in the financial year when incurred.  

When a fixed asset is sold or withdrawn from use, 

its cost and accrued depreciation are eliminated 

and the resulting profit or loss is credited as income 

or debited as an expense. 

Funds received from and granted to third parties 

are credited and debited respectively and are 

progressively cleared as the corresponding 

programs are carried out. 

Third party funds for program implementation (Note 5)

Staff severance pay (SEV) is calculated in accordance with the legal provisions 

applicable to the full amount of the workers’ compensation and is deposited into an 

account in their chosen bank.  

2.7  Provisión para compensación 

2.8  Fondos de terceros para 
desarrollo de programas 

Income from payment of membership fees by active, associate and collaborating 

members is entered in the period to which they correspond, in keeping with the 

approved budgets.  

Income and expenses are recognized and entered 

in the period in which they are earned or incurred.  

Membership fee income 

Income and expenses

2.9  Ingresos por cuotas de 
asociados

2.10  Ingresos y gastos
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EFECTIVO Y EQUIVALENTES    
DE EFECTIVO

CUENTAS POR COBRAR   
ASOCIADOS

3

4

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

MEMBERSHIP ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

At December 31,  this item consisted of:  

  At December 31, this item consisted of:

ALIDE funds

Fees and contributions receivable

Cooperation agreement funds 

2022

2022

US$

US$

US$

US$

983,912 

4,830

857,040 

-
Valor Neto
Net Value

INMUEBLE, MAQUINARIA    
Y EQUIPO5 REAL ESTATE, MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT

At December 31, this item consisted of:

Land

Buildings 

Buildings

Fixtures

Fixtures

Computer equipment

Computer equipment

Saldos al
Balances at Adiciones

Additions

Saldos al
Balances at

US$ US$ US$

4,616,948 

1,855,971 

17,155 4,634,103 

1,833,073 

Cost:

Depreciation:

The depreciation rates are: Buildings 1%, Furniture and Fittings and Fixtures 25%, and Computer equipment 20%.
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CONVENIOS

PROVISIÓN PARA COMPENSACIÓN 
POR TIEMPO DE SERVICIOS

6

7
PROVISION FOR SEVERANCE PAY 

At December 31, this item consisted of:  

At December 31, this item consisted of:   

Cooperation Agreement funds

Provision for SEV 

2022

2022

US$

US$

US$

US$

26,830

83,591 

29,558

82,964

PATRIMONIO    
INSTITUCIONAL8
INSTITUTIONAL EQUITY

personas.

An initial incorporation fee to be paid by each active member 

Annual membership fees and any such special fees as the General Assembly 
may establish for its active members 

Incorporation and annual membership fees and special fees to be collected 
from the associate and collaborating members 

Any such grants, allocations, contributions, donations and payments as the 
Association may receive, and  

provide to its members individually or to other institutions or persons.

The Association’s equity consists of the resources 

enumerated in the Bylaws and such goods as it may 

acquire by right of any legal title.   The following 

ítems constitute its resources: 



ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2022
A

N
N

U
A

L R
E

P
O

R
T

M
E

M
O

R
IA

 A
N

U
A

L

2022

A
N
N
U
A
L R
E
P
O
R
T

M
E
M
O
R
IA
 A
N
U
A
L

MEMORIA ANUAL 2022

The Association promotes the holding of seminars and offers training courses and 

SERVICIOS     
ESPECÍFICOS9
SPECIFIC SERVICES 

At December 31, the institution’s equity consisted of the following:    

Institutional equity at the opening of the year 

Surplus for the year 

2022

US$ US$

2,393,631 2,383,328 
Under the Agreement on Immunities and Privileges signed by ALIDE with the 

Government of Peru, the Association’s activities, goods, funds and operations are 

exempt from the payment of taxes, as well as from any obligation to withhold or 

collect taxes, payments or liens of any kind.   

SITUACIÓN     
TRIBUTARIA10
TAX SITUATION 






